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Revenue increased by approximately 27.4% to approximately
RMB1,199.7 million in 2017 (2016: approximately RMB941.6
million)

Gross profit increased by approximately 38.1% to
approximately RMB373.7 million in 2017 (2016: approximately
RMB270.6 million)

Profit for the year increased by approximately 98.1% to
approximately RMB159.9 million in 2017 (2016: approximately
RMB80.7 million)

Profit before tax excluding the one-off listing expenses in 2017
and 2016 increased by approximately 48.5% to approximately
RMB200.0 million in 2017 (2016: approximately RMB134.7
million)

Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent increased by approximately
49.7% to approximately RMB16.11 cents in 2017 (2016:
approximately RMB10.76 cents)

The Board proposed to declare final dividend of HK3.8 cents
per ordinary share (2016: HK1.8 cents and a special dividend
of HK8.7 cents) for the year ended 31 December 2017

Financial Highlights
MBERE

2017 E W R IE K27 A% E AR 199.7H
BT (20164 : HARM941.6BHE L)

2017 FEEFILINAIBA%E N AREI7TITEE
70 (20164 : HHARKE270.6EET)

2017 F F W@ AL IN498. 1% E X AR K150.9
BETL (20164 : HARKES0.7HET)

20174 B B Al & A 7~ 8 520174 F20164F #Y
— XM ETAE BINH485%E X AR
200.0E &L (2016F : YARKE134.7EE L)

017TFHARIEBEEFEABLGERER
N E BRI INN49.7%E LA RE16.1150
(20164 : HHARME10.765)

EEeREREE2017F12A318 LFET IR
REAW B =R @AR3.8/5 1L (20164 : 1.878
liFn 4 B RS B.8.7784)

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &3}

05



06

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Morris Holdings
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (“2017” or the “Reporting Period”) to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In early 2017, the Company was successfully listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), marking an important milestone in its development.
The Group has smoothly transformed from an original equipment
manufacturing (*OEM”) production factory to an international
enterprise integrating self-owned brand design, production and
wholesale and retail business. Owing to the strategic planning
and dedicated operation, the Company was able to see healthy
development and growing popularity in its products and brand.

The management focused on capacity expansion, market
exploration, retail business development and brand building in
2017. Driven by the increasing number of purchase orders, the
Company increased the number of its employees and established
new factories to fulfill orders from our major clients. In addition
to the existing client in North America, the Company's foreign
trade department actively explored markets including Europe and
Australia, and the online shopping business in North America has
also seen a successful start in late 2017. In September 2017 and
January 2018, the retail flagship stores of "Morrisofa" in Hong Kong
and Shanghai were opened, providing consumers with a brand new
option of the group’s products. Various promotion campaigns were
conducted in Hong Kong and China, thus laying a solid foundation
for "Morrisofa" as a brand.

Furthermore, the Company also raised HK$200 million of convertible
loan from International Finance Corporation (the “IFC”), an institution
with international reputation, which supported the Company's
capacity and business expansion in China and Cambodia.
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With the continuous upgrade of products and the increasing
popularity of the brand, the revenue of the Company increased
from approximately RMB941.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 (“2016") to approximately RMB1,199.7 million
in 2017, representing an year-on-year increase of approximately
27.4%. The gross profit margin also increased from approximately
28.7% in 2016 to approximately 31.1% in 2017, primarily due to the
Company's product upgrade and the increase of average prices.
With the marketing and brand promotion efforts in 2017, the market
position of its sofa products consistently enhanced and the products
started to enter the higher-end markets.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will adhere to the following major
objectives on its business development in the coming two to three
years, including the cultivation of the Company’s corporate culture,
the construction of the “Morris Center”, the continuing expansion of
overseas markets, the development of domestic retail business, the
vertical and horizontal integration through merger and acquisition,
the brand building of “Morrisofa” and the enhancement of the
Company'’s reputation in the capital market.

The establishment of an unique corporate culture of the Company
helps to create self-recognition and a sense of belonging among
employees. By introducing the “Five Hearts of Morris” as the core
values of our corporate culture, the Company aims to build a united
and motivated workforce for the Company’s long-term development
in the future.

The Company has obtained the financing of HK$200 million
convertible loan from IFC, part of which will be used to build the
“Morris Center” in Haining Economic Development Zone. The
Company aims to set up new production facilities and equipment
as well as implement production upgrade and automation to foster
production of higher quality sofa products.

In 2017, the Company successfully established its business
presence in several overseas markets outside of North America. In
the future, the Company will not only put efforts to drive growth in
these newly developed markets, but will also strive to enhance our
relationships with and the services to our existing major customers
in North America in order to gain market shares. Further, online
shopping business will give an extra impetus to our business growth
in the future.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

Driven by consumption upgrade in the domestic market in China, the
Company will aggressively develop and expand its domestic retail
business in 2018, through its diversified business models and sales
channels so as to implant the brand image of “in-heart at a glance”
into the vast domestic consumer market. We believe that the retail
business will be one of our key revenue contributors in the future.

Making merger and acquisition vertically and horizontally along
supply chain to support our expanding business is also our key
target in the coming years. The Company will strengthen its financial
position by capitalizing resources from the capital market with a
vision to become a well-known international furniture enterprise in
the future.

Zou Gebing

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 14 March 2018
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 41, is the chairman and CEO of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016.
He is responsible for overseeing and mapping the Group’s growth
strategy and overall management.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd.,
deputy general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July
1997 to March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002, respectively,
and had been mainly responsible for exploration and development
of overseas markets of sofas and other furniture. He joined Morris
Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris PRC") as part of its management team in
May 2002, served as its vice chairman and general manager since
February 2005, and became the chairman of Morris PRC in January
2012.

and was

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a
master’s degree in business administration for senior management
from Zhejiang University in the PRC in March 2007. He had
also served as a corporate tutor for MBA postgraduates in the
Management School of Zhejiang University from April 2007 to
March 2012. Mr. Zou was accredited as a senior economist by the
Senior Economist Qualification Committee of Zhejiang Province in
December 2007.

With over 16 years of industry experience as mentioned above,
Mr. Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing
related businesses.

Mr. Zou's spouse, Ms. Wu Xiangfei (one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company), is a cousin of Mr. Shen’s spouse.

Mr. Chen Guohua, aged 42, is the executive vice president of the
Group and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March
2016. Mr. Chen is responsible for strategic development, investment
planning and the daily management of the Group.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEHGREEERE

He had served in several government sectors in Haining. From
February 2000 to July 2003, he had served in the People’s
Government of Haining as a section member of the General Office,
a deputy section leader of the Education and Health Section and
a deputy section leader of the Social Affairs Section. From August
2003 to April 2008, he had then served as the section leader of the
Information Technology Research Section of the General Office of
the People’s Government of Haining. From April 2008 to March 2012,
he had served as the deputy director of the management committee
of Jianshan New District of Haining and the deputy mayor of the
People’s Government of Huangwan Town in Haining. In April 2012,
he was employed by Morris PRC as its vice president, and he was
then appointed as an executive vice president of Morris PRC in
November 2012. He was employed by the Group as the executive
vice president immediately after completion of the business transfer
in December 2015.

He has gained experience in the furniture industry during his
employment with Morris PRC and the Group. He graduated from
East China University of Science and Technology in administrative
management in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997.

Mr. Zeng Jin, aged 44,
of production and quality management of the Group and was

is the senior vice president and head

appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing production planning and manufacturing
and quality management the Group. He has extensive experience
in production and quality management.

Prior to joining the Group, he had worked as a technician in
Shanghai Hongdun Anti-Counterfeit Material Co., Ltd. from August
1997 to May 1998. He had then worked at Uniplas (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. from May 1998 to September 2000. He then subsequently
worked as a quality engineer at Krone Communications (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. from September 2000 to November 2001. He had then
been employed as a plant manager assistant and manager in the
engineering department of Shanghai Trayton Furniture Co., Ltd. from
November 2001 to January 2005. He then joined Morris PRC and
was appointed as a general manager assistant in January 2005 and
then as a deputy general manager in November 2011. He was then
employed by the Group as a senior vice president and the head of
production and quality management immediately after completion
of the business transfer in December 2015.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Zeng obtained his double bachelor’'s degrees in polymer science
and computer software from East China University of Science and
Technology in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997 and a master of Business
Administration Degree from Donghua University in Shanghai, PRC
in June 2008.

Mr. Shen Zhidong, aged 43, is a senior vice president of the
Group and was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2017.
He is also a director of Masia Industries Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company in Cambodia. Mr. Shen is the head of administrative
operations and human resources matters of the Group.

Mr. Shen had served in the government sectors in Haining for over
ten years. From February 1999 to June 2010, Mr. Shen had served
in the Organization Department of Haining Municipal Committee of
the Communist Party of China in many positions including, among
others, as a section member, a deputy section leader, a section
leader, a committee member and a deputy bureau level coordinator.
From June 2010 to January 2014, Mr. Shen served as the deputy
director of the General Office of the People’s Government of
Haining. In January 2014, Mr, Shen was employed by Morris PRC
as its vice president. He was employed by the Group as the senior
vice president immediately after completion of the transfer of the
furniture division of Morris PRC to the Group in December 2015.

Mr. Shen graduated from the Party School Open College of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in the study of
economic management in December 2002.

Mr. Shen’s spouse is a cousin of Ms. Wu Xiangfei, one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Zou.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EFHEEAEEERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenli, aged 36, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2016 and is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee
of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a member of
each of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
and nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”).

Mr. Huang was appointed as a researcher at the China University
of Finance and Economics in June 2016. Mr. Huang received his
doctorate in Mathematics from Zhejiang University in June 2011
and became a postdoctoral researcher at the China University of
Science and Technology in Anhui Province in December 2011.
During the period, Mr. Huang received the second prize of China
Postdoctoral Science Fund. From August 2013 to September 2015,
Mr. Huang is a visiting scholar at the Columbia Business School.

Based on his education background and research experience, Mr.
Huang possesses the requisite knowledge relating to finance, risk
control and China economy.

Mr. Huang’s positions in other companies include independent
director in Jiangsu China Star New Materials Technology Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 836256, National Equities Exchange and Quotations,
China (“NEEQ”)), Zhejiang Jinghua Laser Technology Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 603607, Shanghai Stock Exchange, China (“SSE”)),
Zhejiang Tailin BioEngineering Co.,Ltd (stock code: 833327,
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, China (“SZSE”)) and Beijing Xinxiang
Weichuang Sci&Tech Co., Ltd (stock code: 833554, NEEQ).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Shao Shaomin, aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 10 December 2016 and is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration and Nomination Committees.

Mr. Shao acted as a deputy county chief of Deqging County of
Zhejiang Province, a deputy chief of the Issuance and Listing
Department of Zhejiang Securities and Futures Management Office
and the head of the Listed Company Supervision Department and
Inspection Department of Zhejiang Supervision Bureau of China
Securities Regulatory Commission.

Mr. Shao graduated from Zhejiang University in the PRC with a
doctoral degree in Economics in June 2004. Mr. Shao received
independent director training in Shanghai National Accounting
Institute in the PRC in December 2008. Mr. Shao was designated
as a senior accountant by the Senior Accounting Professional
Assessment Committee of Zhejiang Province in December 1998 and
was admitted as a non-practicing member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in December 2009. Mr. Shao was
also appointed as an accredited arbitrator in Hangzhou Arbitration
Commission in June 2013.

Mr. Shao’s positions in other companies include (i) vice president
and director in Cosmos Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002133,
SZSE); and (ii) independent director in Yinlun Co., Ltd., Zhejiang
China Light & Textile Industrial City Group Co., Ltd. (stock code:
600790, SSE) and Nanfang Zhongjin Environment Co., Ltd (stock
code: 300145, SZSE).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Liu Haifeng, aged 43, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 6 July 2017 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Liu has been a tutor to master students in public administration
of faculties of humanities of Donghua University since 2011
and a deputy manager of Donghua University Master of Public
Administration Center since September 2014.

Mr. Liu obtained his master degree in education from Shanghai
Normal University in June 2004. Mr. Liu later obtained his doctoral
degree in management science and engineering from Donghua
University School of Business and Management in June 2009. He
then later completed his postdoctoral study in applied economics
at Fudan University and obtained his certificate of postdoctoral in
May 2014.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Peng Yuling, aged 54, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of the Group on 31 December 2015. She is responsible for
managing the financial operations and accounting functions of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Peng served as a finance
manager, a deputy general manager and a director at Haining
Jisheng Textile Co., Ltd. from February 1994 to November 2001.
Ms. Peng then subsequently served as a deputy finance manager
and a director at Zhejiang Jianshi Industry Co., Ltd. and a deputy
general manager and a director at Haining Jishun Garments Co.,
Ltd., from December 2001 to December 2005 and from December
2006 to January 2012, respectively. Ms. Peng joined Morris PRC as
the chief financial officer in February 2012 and was employed by
the Group as the chief financial officer immediately after completion
of the business transfer in December 2015. Ms. Peng graduated
from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of China in the PRC in the study of Economic Management
in December 2000. She was accredited as a senior accountant by
the Assessment Committee of Senior Accountant Qualification of
Zhejiang Province in December 2003.

Ms. Shen Jiangping, aged 44, was appointed as the director
of human resources of the Group on 31 December 2015. She
is responsible for overseeing recruitment, staff training, reward
management and human resources matters of the Group. Ms.
Shen joined Morris PRC in October 2001 and worked at the
human resources department of Morris PRC. Ms. Shen was then
promoted to deputy manager and manager in the human resources
department of Morris PRC in April 2002 and December 2011,
respectively. Ms. Shen was subsequently appointed as manager
in the finance department of Morris PRC in June 2014. Ms. Shen
was employed by the Group as the director of human resources
immediately after completion of the business transfer in December
2015. Ms. Shen completed a three year program in accounting at
the School of Distance Learning of Zhejiang University in the PRC
in June 2007. Ms. Shen was accredited as a first level corporate
human resources professional by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of the PRC in December 2010.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Wang Ming, aged 42, is vice president, head of import and
export and head of sales and marketing of the Group. He is primarily
responsible for managing and reviewing import and export contracts
and overseas trading documents, arranging for transportation,
clearance and inspection of cargos and coordinating with the
Group’s finance department to arrange for payment and tax refund,
developing new markets and clientele and maintaining customers’
relationship. Before joining the Group, he joined Morris PRC in June
2008 as a foreign trade clerk and was appointed as a manager in
the foreign trade marketing department (second section) of Morris
PRC in February 2013. He then became a manager of the foreign
trade, import and export department of Morris PRC in December
2013 and was further appointed as vice president of Morris PRC in
January 2015. He was employed by the Group as a vice president
and head of import and export immediately after completion of the
business transfer in December 2015. He was further appointed as
head of sales and marketing on 1 September 2016. He obtained his
bachelor's degree in English from Huaibei Coal Industry Teachers
College (now known as Huaibei Normal University) in July 2000 and
a master’s degree in legal theories from Shanghai Normal University
in June 2008.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

With the continuous efforts of our management team and our
employees, the Group achieved good results in 2017. The Group’s
revenue increased from approximately RMB941.6 million in 2016
to approximately RMB1,199.7 million in 2017, representing an
increase of approximately 27.4%. Profit for the year increased by
approximately 98.1% from approximately RMB80.7 million in 2016
to approximately RMB159.9 million in 2017. Excluding the one-off
listing expenses incurred in 2017 and 2016, the profit before tax
increased by approximately 48.5% from approximately RMB134.7
million in 2016 to approximately RMB200.0 million in 2017.

Capacity Expansion

Capacity expansion is one of the key tasks for the Group’s
development in 2017. In the first quarter of 2017, the Group actively
enhanced its production capacity by setting up new production
lines and recruiting a large number of new workers. Having regard
to the investment in staff training, the newly recruited workers have
become more skillful during the Reporting Period, which laid a solid
foundation to cater to the growing demands from both manufacturing
and retail businesses in the future.

Overseas Markets

With effective marketing strategies, the Group has further gained
customers’ recognition and trust. During the Reporting Period, the
Group increased its market share in the North America market, and
became a major supplier for some well-known furniture retail chains.
In addition to the North America market, the Group also made
achievements in further expanding its business in other overseas
markets, such as the United Kingdom, lIreland and Australia.
Furthermore, the Group set up four new warehouses in North
America during the Reporting Period to support its export business
as well as to serve as a logistics and service hub for its online
retail business in order to seize opportunities from the growing
e-commerce market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Retail Market

Building our own brand name “Morrisofa” is a strategic move for
the Group’s development in the long run. The Group opened its
first flagship store in Wan Chai, Hong Kong in September 2017. The
products of “Morrisofa” are designed by a famous designer in Milan,
Italy, focusing on a more fashionable, young and multi-functional
product line for the targeted mid-end market. With our brand concept

"o«

of integrating “recreation”, “entertainment” and “healthcare” in one
product, the Group hopes to provide a practical and comfortable
living experience to all customers. Following the successful start,
the Group opened another flagship store in Xuhui District, Shanghai
in January 2018, and has been receiving overwhelming responses

from customers since its launch.

Strategic Investor

In January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement totaling HK$200 million with IFC, which provided a strong
financial support to the Company’s capacity and business expansion
in China and Cambodia. Our Directors believe this would provide
confidence to our Shareholders and potential investors. At the same
time, it also helped to lay a strong foundation for the development
of the Company in the capital market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB941.6
million in 2016 to approximately RMB1,199.7 million in 2017,
representing an increase of approximately 27.4%. The profit for
the year increased by approximately 98.1% from approximately
RMB80.7 million in 2016 to approximately RMB159.9 million in 2017.
If excluding the one-off listing expenses incurred in 2017 and 2016,
the profit before tax would increase by approximately 48.5% from
approximately RMB134.7 million in 2016 to approximately RMB200.0
million in 2017. The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent was
approximately RMB16.11 cents in 2017 (2016: RMB10.76 cents)
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent of RMB159,855,000 (2016: RMB80,676,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 992,465,753
(2016: 750,000,000) in issue during the year. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares in 2016 represented the 100 ordinary
shares of the Company as at 1 January 2016, 99,900 ordinary shares
of the Company issued under the Share Split (as defined in note 24)
and 749,900,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued under the
Capitalisation Issue (as defined in note 24), as if these additional
shares issued under the Share Split and the Capitalisation Issue had
been in issue throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, and
250,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company were issued pursuant
to the listing (the “Listing”) of our shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange as at 12 January 2017.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 27.4%,
from approximately RMB941.6 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB1,199.7 million in 2017, which was primarily attributable to the
significant increase in sales volume of both sofas and sofa covers.
Sofa products continued to contribute as the major component of
sales, which was in line with the Group’s strategy in developing its
original brand manufacturing (“OBM”) business model. The Group
has been changing its business model from OEM business model
to OBM business model and has been increasing its focus on
promoting the Group’s own brand in the market during the Reporting
Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group increased by approximately 23.1%
from approximately RMB671.1 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB826.0 million in 2017, which was primarily due to the increase
in the consumption of major raw materials and increase in direct
labour.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 38.1%
from approximately RMB270.6 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB373.7 million in 2017, which was primarily due to (i) the increase
in average selling price of our sofa products; and (ii) the continuous
growth on our OBM business which contributed a higher gross profit
margin. Our gross profit margin increased from approximately 28.7%
in 2016 to approximately 31.1% in 2017.

Other income and gains

The other income and gains of the Group decreased by
approximately 18.5% from approximately RMB16.4 million in 2016
to approximately RMB13.4 million in 2017. Such decrease was
primarily due to a net foreign exchange gain of approximately
RMB14.2 million recorded in 2016.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 24.8% from approximately RMB82.0 million in 2016
to approximately RMB102.3 million in 2017. Such increase was
primarily due to the increase in marketing and promotion expenses.
In particular, there was an increase in the expenditure of expanding
and strengthening our sales channels network in our major markets.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 6.6% from approximately RMB77.3 million in 2016
to approximately RMB72.3 million in 2017, which was primarily
due to the net effects of (i) the decrease of listing expenses from
approximately RMB22.6 million incurred in 2016 to approximately
RMB1.9 million incurred in 2017; and (ii) a net foreign exchange loss
of approximately RMB7.0 million recorded in 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased from approximately
RMB14.3 million in 2016 to approximately RMB11.7 million in 2017
primarily due to a lower average balance of bank borrowings
outstanding in 2017 compared to 2016.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense of the Group increased by approximately
21.8% from approximately RMB31.4 million in 2016 to approximately
RMB38.2 million in 2017. In addition, the effective tax rate decreased
from approximately 28.0% in 2016 to approximately 19.3% in 2017.
The substantial decrease in effective tax rate in 2017 was mainly
attributable to (i) the decrease in the impact of non-deductible
expenses for tax from approximately RMB6.5 million in 2016 to
approximately RMB2.1 million in 2017, which was mainly due to
the decrease in non-deductible listing expenses incurred; (ii) the
adjustments of current year income tax in respect of over-provision
of prior year income tax provision of approximately RMB5.6 million;
and (iii) the increase in the impact of a super-deduction of eligible
research and development expenditure from approximately RMB3.2
million in 2016 to approximately RMB7.7 million in 2017, mainly
arising from the manufacturing costs incurred by the Group that
qualified for an additional 50% tax deduction for PRC CIT purpose
in accordance with the Circular on Improving the Policy on Extra
Pre-tax Deduction of Research and Development Expenses (B
TEMFRREEBTA N NREER A which was promulgated
by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation and
the Ministry of Science and Technology on 2 November 2015 and
with effect from 1 January 2016.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year significantly
increased by approximately 98.1% from approximately RMB80.7
million in 2016 to approximately RMB159.9 million in 2017. If
excluding the one-off listing expenses incurred in 2017 and 2016,
the profit before tax would increase by approximately 48.5% from
approximately RMB134.7 million in 2016 to approximately RMB200.0
million in 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBHNWE DT

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Working capital

For 2017, cash and cash equivalents of the Group decreased
by approximately RMB47.4 million, which mainly comprised (i)
the gross proceeds from our Listing of approximately RMB234.0
million; (ii) dividends paid for 2016 final and 2017 interim dividends
in total of approximately RMB143.3 million; and (iii) repayments
of interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately RMB124.5
million.

Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB149.7 million, all of
which were repayable within twelve months from 31 December
2017. The bank loans’ interest rates ranged between 2.1% to 6.5%
per annum.

As at 31 December 2017, approximately RMB181.9 million restricted
bank balances were pledged for bills payables.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is total interest-bearing bank
borrowings divided by total equity as at the end of the year and
multiplied by 100%, decreased from approximately 174.6% as at 31
December 2016 to approximately 39.1% as at 31 December 2017,
which was primarily due to increase in total equity and repayment
of interest-bearing bank borrowings during 2017.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2017.

Trade and bills receivables

The trade and bills receivables of the Group increased to
approximately RMB389.0 million as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: RMB220.0 million), primarily due to the significant
increase in sales to our customers in the fourth quarter in 2017 as
compared to the corresponding period in 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group decreased to
approximately RMB438.2 million as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: RMB542.7 million), primarily due to early settlement
of balances with some of our suppliers.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The management believes that talent is the basis for long-term
development and growth of enterprises. The Group targeted
to enhance its corporate image through the building-up of the
Company’s brand name. With ‘Five Hearts of Morris’: ambition,
confidence, determination, perseverance and loyalty, as the core
values of our corporate culture, the Group targeted to establish
a distinctive corporate culture. Through regular trainings and
education of our corporate culture, the Group provides its staff
with potentials for personal growth and increase our employees’
sense of belonging to the Group. In addition, the Group provides
its employees with competitive remuneration packages and various
benefits in line with industry practice. At the same time, the Group
creates a good working environment, and establishes teamwork
spirit among employees. We carry out “performance evaluation for
excellence” quarterly, and irregularly carry out “Morris Artisans”
evaluations, aiming at encouraging the morale of our technicians.
The Group regularly reviews human resources policies to ensure that
the policies align with market practice and comply with regulatory
requirements. As of December 31, 2017, the Group employed 2,052
employees (31 December 2016: 1,996 employees). The total annual
salary and related costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) for 2017
was approximately RMB143.2 millions ( 2016: RMB139.5 million).
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERREAEERE

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition
to those shown below which are not known to the Group or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RISK
Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
so as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable)
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The
Group’s cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2017
maintained at a satisfactory level. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
Group’s production mainly operates in the PRC. Accordingly, its
revenue is received in U.S. dollar while transactions arising from its
operations were generally settled in RMB. As a result, fluctuations
in the value of U.S. dollars against RMB could adversely affect the
operations of the Group. During 2017, the Group did not experience
any material difficulties or impacts on its operations or liquidity as a
result of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes during 2017 and there was no hedging instruments
outstanding as at 31 December 2017. The Group will continue
to monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising from its existing
operations and new investments in the future. The Group will further
implement the necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate any
significant foreign exchange risk when and if appropriate.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&IERERA T

UTRAEEBNNHNDEIERE R TEERE -
BRan T AR R R N EE R RS AEBER
FHEBMBTABRERBTIERERKAELER
EEMHMBRERM T EERSE -

T b B A By
REBEE R

AEBZHRATHERERIUERTE  UERE
HERBANERRECHEREFTZS BB ERE
RAEFESLTEE (WMEA) - AEER2017F
12A31BZ RS MRS EEMEREREKRTE - B
2017F12A318  NEEBEERENEG ©

SNE R B

AEERREIBEEFPHRATEREXE  BEE
BETEETE- At RRAWKAAEZTKR
B BEXEEBNXZBEAAREEE - P
KR AREHE X KB A e AR B R BT K
THEE - R2017%F - AREERBHHRBIEREE
KRB MEBTAEANRARTE -

20174 » AEEWEFEAE AR I EEH A
% MEEAR2017E12A3MAMRFAZH R T
Bo RGEEBBERYERRARA £ IARRH
BRENEERRR AEEREHERE—TEHRY
DL - UERTMEARNEZRR



Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taken
into account the customer’s payment history and current ability to
pay, any information specific to the customer and the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The credit period is
generally one to two months, extending up to three to four months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Impairment losses are recorded for those overdue
balances where there is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables
due from the Group’s five largest customers who accounted
for approximately 82.0% and 79.0% of the Group’s total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 respectively. The
credit risk exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will
continue to be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing bank borrowings. The Group monitors
the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts the
portfolio of bank deposits and borrowings where necessary.

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from the U.S., its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on
the U.S. economy. The Group’s profitability and business growth
are affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits,
public debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political
instability. Moreover, Donald Trump, elected President in November
2016, has changed the U.S. trade policies with China, which could
bring adverse impact to the business of the Group.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERREAEERE

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade
policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.

Economic environment of Cambodia

The factory of Cambodia is planned to operate in 2018. The
economic risk and political risk of Cambodia is set out in the section
headed “Cambodia: Political and economic outlook” on page 27 of
this annual report.

OPERATIONAL RISK
Raw materials

Changes in raw materials costs may adversely affect the future
results of the Company. The Company aims to maintain long-term
business relationships with suppliers to acquire raw materials.

Availability, recruitment and retention of skilled personnel

The Group’s success and ability to grow depends largely on its
ability to attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and
qualified managerial, sales, marketing, administrative, operating,
and technical personnel. The loss of key personnel, or the inability
to find additional qualified personnel, could materially and adversely
affect the Group’s prospects and results of operations. The Group
constantly reviews its human resources strategy to ensure that its
human resources policies, processes and practices are able to
facilitate its organization development.

The Group is committed to its risk management system in order to
identify and assess risks of major projects and key business areas
at all levels. With risk reports highlighting weaknesses and potential
risks, the Group reviews and implements its risk management and
control measures to control and manage the risks which the Group
is exposed to.
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Cambodia: Political and Economic Outlook

DOMESTIC AND EXTERNAL POLITICAL ENVIRONMENT

Elections for the country’s National Assembly are due on July 29,
2018. In the last election, held in 2013, the Cambodian People’s
Party (CPP) under its leader Hun Sen, who has been Prime Minister
since 1985, won 68 seats of the 123 then available and 48.8% of the
vote. This sharp drop from the CPP’s performance in 2008, when it
took 90 seats and 58.1% of the vote, was due to the newly formed
Cambodian National Rescue Party (CNRP) led by Sam Rainsy and
Kem Sokha, which won 55 seats and 44.5% of the vote in 2013.

As recently as mid-2017, the CNRP appeared to be maintaining
a serious challenge to the CPP ahead of this year’s legislative
elections. The country’s most recent electoral test -- voting for
council seats in June 2017, when the turnout was 90% -- saw the
CPP win 50.8% of the vote while the CNRP took 43.8%.

Hun Sen has responded to the challenge from the CNRP in two
ways. One has been to indicate a crackdown on corruption, to
increase pay in the public sectors as well as the crucial garment
industry, and to back policies intended to support economic
expansion and modernisation.

At the same time, however, the CPP moved to dismantle the CNRP
by making it illegal for political parties to associate with criminals (a
category that includes Rainsy) or to damage the ‘national interest’. In
September, Kem Sokha, who had succeeded Rainsy as party leader
in March 2017, was arrested on treason charges. Then in November,
following government allegations that the CNRP had been plotting
a coup with international help, Cambodia’s Supreme Court ordered
the dissolution of the party and banned 118 of its top officials from
political activities for five years.

The CPP quickly moved to redistribute the CNRP’s seats in the
National Assembly among a number of minor parties, effectively
fracturing the opposition. Funcinpec, the royalist party that was
previously in coalition with the CPP, was handed 41 seats that had
been held by the CNRP seats. The Cambodian Nationality Party
(CNP) gained two and the Khmer Economic Development Party
(KEDP) one. The CPP itself picked up eleven seats that two other
minor parties refused to accept.
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The banning of the CNRP has left voters opposed to the ruling
CPP in a dilemma ahead of the July election. In the absence of
the major opposition party, it is likely that their votes would be
split across a range of minor parties. Even Funcinpec, currently
the second-largest party in the National Assembly following the
post-CNRP redistribution despite winning less than 4% of the vote
in 2013, has said that it intendeds to operate as a “minority” party
rather than an opposition party. Although Funcinpec, the CNP and
KEDP now constitute the formal opposition, they may well avoid
opposing the CPP so as to avoid the fate suffered by CNRP. This
non-confrontational approach will make it difficult for the three
parties to build public profiles that voters will respect.

In January 2018, Sam Rainsy launched the Cambodia National
Rescue Movement from exile in France in the hope of encouraging
meaningful international economic pressure on the CPP government
while urging Cambodians to conduct non-violent protests. However,
Rainsy’s plan is unlikely to work given the risks of contravening the
new laws on assembly and the enhanced powers now available to
the security services.
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Cambodia: Political and Economic Outlook

Hun Sen and the CPP are aware that the quality of governance in
Cambodia faces longer-term pressures as a developing middle
class demands better administration and a functioning infrastructure
that includes effective healthcare and education. Although the CPP
is likely to retain power in July, it cannot satisfy the demands of the
voters as the economy expands then its current efforts to constrain
the opposition may well turn voters against the party in subsequent
elections.

Within the wider region, there is an increasing acceptance that
Cambodia will largely take the Chinese line on regional issues.
Although ASEAN was unsettled by Phnom Penh’s pro-Beijing
stance when Cambodia chaired the organisation in 2012, there
is no political will in the region to try and pull Phnom Penh out of
Beijing’s orbit. Singapore, which chairs ASEAN in 2018, is unwilling
to confront China directly, and when Thailand takes over in 2019 it
will still be absorbed in domestic issues. As a result, its closeness
to China should cause Cambodia little regional trouble in the next
two years.

The only exception is the alarm being caused by the long-term
ecological consequences of the dams that Cambodia is building on
its tributary rivers with Chinese help. Vietnam is the country most
affected, and it will be chairing ASEAN in 2020.

In general, Southeast Asia will see healthy economic growth in
the next 2-3 years, and all countries in the region will benefit to
some degree. The World Bank’s latest projections continue to
see the Cambodian economy growing at 6.9% in 2018 thanks to
the combination of substantial foreign investment, greater export
diversification, and a more buoyant global outlook. Efforts to develop
an ASEAN Economic Community, as well as the proposed Regional
Comprehensive Economic Agreement (RCEP) and the interest from
Europe and North America in forging free trade agreements in the
region, will all reinforce Cambodia’s attractiveness for investment
and its role in the light manufacturing supply chain.

The United Kingdom is a leading European export destination for
Cambodian garments. As London moves to define its post-Brexit
economic arrangements, one of its aims is to strike free trade
agreements internationally. Cambodia has already expressed a wish
to reach a free trade agreement with the UK, and London may well
decide to pursue such a deal relatively quickly.
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The expanding economy is driving a demand for credit that the
market is finding it difficult to meet. About 1.8 million households
had outstanding loans at the end of the third quarter of 2017,
according to the Cambodia Microfinance Association, which was
down from 2.1 million at the end of 2016. There was almost 4 billion
dollars of outstanding credit in April-dune 2017, up from 3.1 billion in
late 2016, and the World Bank has indicated that the credit market
is under pressure.

The UN University’s 2016 World Risk Report indicated that Cambodia
is among the countries in the Asia-Pacific region whose high
exposure to risks from natural disasters is coupled with a poor
capacity to cope with the consequences of disaster. However,
insurance markets are still in their infancy in Cambodia.

The government is in favour of foreign investment and has a range of
tax policy incentives to attract international companies. Cambodia’s
stock market is developing steadily, and the government is making
gradual moves to reduce dollarisation in the economy in favour of
Cambodia’s riel currency. There are moves underway to develop
a national minimum wage, which at present allies only to the
garment and textiles sector. This sector may also benefit as more
international companies indicate that they expect the government
to move towards international standards for working conditions.

Tourism continues to be a growth area, although the pace of growth
has slowed recently from the 25% rise in tourist numbers seen in
2012,and the sector is now the country’s third largest employer.
There are more tourists from the United States than from Europe or
Japan, although Vietnam and China, together with South Korea, now
provide the most visitors.

The prospect of political stability, albeit a largely enforced stability
after the removal of the CNRP and the fracturing of the remaining
opposition, should mean a relatively predictable environment for
business in the medium term.
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CORRUPTION

Transparency International’s Corruption Perceptions Index has
ranked Cambodia as one of the worst countries for corruption in the
Asia Pacific region for the last several years. Although international
agencies have been helping the government to write anti-corruption
legislation since the 1990s, and many provisions such as the 2011
Anticorruption Law cover Western concerns about corruption, but
poor enforcement means that they have little effect.

In Cambodia, endemic levels of corruption combine with a high
degree of bureaucracy to make the commercial environment
potentially difficult. The 2018 edition of the World Bank’s Ease of
Doing Business survey places Cambodia 135th out of 190 countries,
with only the ability to obtain easy credit offsetting the poor rankings
for starting a business (183rd), dealing with construction permits
(179th), and enforcing contracts (179th). All these are areas that
are susceptible to bribery and corruption.

Other areas that are particularly vulnerable to corruption include
establishing land ownership and infrastructure projects that will have
particular environmental consequences or an impact on the local
population. Business licenses and permits are particularly difficult
to obtain, even by Southeast Asia standards, without an offer of
gifts and corruption in the customs sector is particularly rife. The
legal system, including the police, offers little relief, as the judiciary
continues to be viewed as the most corrupt institution in Cambodia.

Corruption is becoming an issue not only for businesses but
also individuals. As the economy has improved, research has
revealed that corruption is one of the leading concerns for ordinary
Cambodians. However, while a meaningful rather than cosmetic
anti-corruption campaign would probably be popular, it remains
unlikely that the CPP will feel the need to move beyond rhetoric to
significant action during 2018.

LABOUR

In recent years, the garment sector, which contributed Cambodia’s
major manufactured export, has seen regular protests in support
of higher minimum pay. The government has usually responded by
providing some sort of increase, but last year Hun Sen specifically
intervened to order a significant increase in the sector’'s minimum
wage ahead of the 2018 elections. At the same time, legislation on
trade unions passed in 2016 has put further limits on the right to
strike, and union registration has become more complex.
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RIFZE | BUBNEERIR

Although the government wants to modernise the economy by
moving away from the continuing emphasis on agriculture, which
still employs two-thirds of the workforce, doing so will require not
only domestic and foreign investment but also improvements to
the education system and the development of worker training. This
should become easier as the percentage of the population living in
urban centres increases, but the urbanisation process will also put
pressure on the available housing stock and the ability to provide
health care.

SOCIAL STABILITY

With the removal of the main opposition, many voters may come to
regard civil society activism rather than party politics, as the most
effective form of political activity during 2018. However, the police
and military are closely aligned with the CPP and the government
has passed laws that constrain freedom of assembly. Further
limitations on opposition movements look likely, and any significant
protests would be met with a severe response from the security
forces.

TAX POLICY

The government operates a full range of tax incentives in a bid to
help business and attract foreign investment, although there may be
greater pressure on taxes if the CPP feels the need to push ahead
with a greater degree of economic populism.

However, taxes are an area of corruption that is seen by various
business groups as particularly troubling and a major deterrent
for foreign investment, not least because the government does not
appear to apply a uniform tax rate across the board but instead
tailors tax rates to benefit those foreign partners that it prefers.
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IMPORT AND EXPORT MEASURES

When Hun Sen removed the CNRP as a political threat last year,
he tested the limits of international tolerance. He will probably have
been surprised, and certainly pleased, by the limited condemnation
he received. At the end of 2017, as a response to the banning of
the CNRP, the US imposed travel sanctions on several individuals
from the CPP for “undermining democracy” in Cambodia. However,
trade sanctions are not currently under consideration and ASEAN
has made clear that it will take no action on Cambodia’s domestic
situation.

In the fourth quarter of 2017, the Garment Manufacturers Association
in Cambodia petitioned Washington for an extension of the US
Generalized System of Preferences (GSP) to the footwear sector, in
which Cambodian manufacturers are heavily engaged. This request
is considered rather optimistic, as footwear has not been included
within the GSP before. The GSP programme is intended to promote
economic growth in developing countries by providing duty-free
entry to more developed markets for up to 5,000 goods, depending
on the development level of an individual country. Many South-east
Asian economies are structured to take advantage of the GSP, and
Cambodia is already the ninth-largest beneficiary of the programme.

The Trump administration’s ‘America First’ approach to trade policy
has made expectations of GSP access less certain but at the same
time more important for the region. However, the decision to end
American interest in the Trans-Pacific Partnership (TPP) has had
little impact on Cambodia as it is not eligible to participate in the
TPP because it is not an APEC member.

Although the GSP programme will need to be reauthorised this year,
the encouraging news for Cambodia is that the Trump administration
does not appear to view GSP recipients through a political lens, as
did Obama administration tended to do. As a result, authoritarian
South-east Asian states such as Thailand and Cambodia are
not likely to have GSP withheld for political purposes, even if
other sanctions are applied. Moreover, with the US now showing
greater concern about the protection of intellectual property in GSP
countries, Cambodia is confident that its current export profile will
ensure that intellectual property is not a major issue.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Board has
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and is
satisfied that save as disclosed below, the Company has complied
with all code provisions (“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable,
the recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) since 12 January 2017, the date on
which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Date”) and up to the date of this report.

According to Code Provision A.2.1., the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Zou Gebing as
both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company.
The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer in the same individual would enable the Company
to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness
when formulating business strategies and executing business
plans. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the senior management
and the Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre
individuals. The Board currently comprises four executive Directors
(including Mr. Zou Gebing) and three independent non-executive
Directors and therefore has a fairly strong independence element
in its composition. The Board will nevertheless review the structure
and composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances, in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

Under Code Provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code,
independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings. One of the independent
non-executive Directors, Ms. Zhang Bingbing, did not attend the
2016 annual general meeting of the Company (*AGM”), held on 31
May 2017 due to other business engagements.
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Pursuant to Code Provision I(f) of the Corporate Governance Code
and Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules, an issuer must
include in its board of directors of at least three independent
non-executive directors and an audit committee comprising of a
minimum of three members which shall comprise of non-executive
directors only.

As disclosed in the Company’s circular dated 26 April 2017 and
the Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2017, Ms. Zhang Bing
Bing resigned as an independent non-executive Director on 31 May
2017. Upon Ms. Zhang's retirement, the number of independent
non-executive Directors and the number of members of the Audit
Committee fell below the minimum number required under Rules
3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Liu Haifeng was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and as the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee on 6 July 2017. Following Mr. Liu’s appointment, the
Company has fulfilled the requirement under Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of
the Listing Rules for having at least three independent non-executive
Directors and three members in the Audit Committee, respectively.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of
the Company for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company
has made specific enquiry with all Directors and the relevant
employees regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code
during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
and they all confirmed that they had fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management,
businesses, strategic directions and financial performance of the
Group. The Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group’s
businesses and operations. All important issues are discussed
in a timely manner. The Board delegates to the management
the daily operations of the Group under the directions set out
by the management and the Board. The Board has established
various committees and has delegated to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee of the
Board (collectively, the “Board Committees”) various duties. All the
Board Committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with
their respective terms of reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall
meet at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will
be held when warranted. The Directors at all times have full and
timely access to information of the Group. There is a procedure
for Directors to seek independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by them at the expense of the Company, as
appropriate.

Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included
in the agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by
the company secretary with details of the decisions reached, any
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the
final versions of Board minutes are sent to the Directors for their
information and records. The draft minutes are sent to all Directors
within a reasonable time after each meeting for their comments
before being formally signed. The signed minutes are kept in safe
custody by the company secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors.

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ liability has been
arranged by the Company.
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As of the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zou Gebing (Chairman and CEQO)

Mr. Chen Guohua

Mr. Zeng Jin

Mr. Wang Ming (resigned on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Shen Zhidong (appointed on 6 July 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Huang Wenli

Mr. Shao Shaomin

Ms. Zhang Bingbing (resigned on 31 May 2017)
Mr. Liu Haifeng (appointed on 6 July 2017)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” on page 9 to page 14 of this annual report.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
the attendance of the individual Directors at the meetings is set out
below:

TRERBE

RAHZREAH  EFgdARmT

HITES

BRIt (FEFTHAAZ)
FeR B 2 o £

e

Féke 4 (201755 31 BEEE)
hERSEAE (20177 A6 B EERE)

BYKHTES:

BEXERE

AR gt

RokkZ+ (201755 A31 BEEE)
2BIE LA (20177 A6 B EESTE)

EEREHNAFERESEIBEZTM4EZ [EFHES
REEERE] -

ELTRBERRE B BN SEEL AR
R

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend from

the Listing Date to the date of this report

BETRHZAREAMHE AERERENERAE

Remuneration Nomination Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting

Name of Director EEng FMzag REZEg ENZEg gxg BEXE
Executive Directors 78S
Mr. Zou Gebing PrarsE N/A N/A N/A 7112 il
Mr. Chen Guohua BREEEL N/A N/A N/A 12/12 11
Mr. Zeng Jin Lotk N/A N/A N/A 12/12 1/1
Mr. Wang Ming (Note 1) Fa%kAE (FiEE1) N/A N/A N/A 3/4 0/1
Mr. Shen Zhidong (Note 2) MERLE (F5E2) N/A N/A N/A 717 N/A
Independent non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Shao Shaomin WAL 3/3 3/3 6/6 112 11
Mr. Huang Wenli BEXELE 3/3 3/3 6/6 9/12 11
Ms. Zhang Bingbing (Note 3) swikk&t (FiEE3) on 0N 0/2 0/4 01
Mr. Liu Haifeng (Note 4) [EEE (F4) 2/2 2/2 414 717 N/A
Notes: Pt 3

(1) Mr. Wang Ming resigned on 31 May 2017
(2) Mr. Shen Zhidong was appointed on 6 July 2017
(8) Ms. Zhang Bingbing resigned on 31 May 2017

(4) Mr. Liu Haifeng was appointed on 6 July 2017

(1) TEa%EEM201765A31AEHT

(2) LEREENR2017F7A6BEERT
(3) FikikZEHR20179F5A31 B E{E
(4) BIBIELENR2017F7H6HELRE
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide
their independent and objective views. In compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group. The
Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in the
Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. The Company
has received annual confirmation of independence from all the
independent non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors Mr. Shao Shaomin and
Mr, Huang Wenli were appointed on 10 December 2016, and Mr. Liu
Haifeng was appointed on 6 July 2017. They are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company.Ms. Zhang Bingbing resigned and did not seek for
re-election as an independent non-executive Director at the 2016
AGM on 31 May 2017, due to her other business commitments,
appointment as an official at another organisation. Please refer to
“Corporate Governance Practices” on page 34 of this report for
further details.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&IERERA T

BYFHITESNE M

BUFRTEENACHAEETERUBILER
MER  READBRHERANLRFE  ARE
PR R AN R EEH A -

PR ESeRESZESLBREHEB YLK
XEEBEHNER - ARAEEREMHANEI 0
3.10AMg ZE=ZBBIUIFRTEE - hEZTGAH
BBR=HZ—  Hbh—BBUIFERTESTEELD
HAIEIN0Q)GFMEENEE ST EXERNIEHE
WIEBEIRE M -

E=gE BUFNTEFEASEYEEMNE
AR - BEFEHERTESB MR BB LR
AFTE RO R o

EFXEXREBZHRBYE BAX REXIHME
RAGBEOEE - AARBREZBULIFNTES
RIFELETRAEIIBGREINFEELIEERE -
EXERRERBUNTEFTHNA LHARAN
B -

B IEITE BR D BUL A B E B £ R 2016%F
12A10REZF - mPEIE%LERIR2017F7 A6
HEZT HEAREBEAARABERRMAGKRER
- AEEHEMEBADE - RKKkZEER2017
F5A31HBITH2016FREBFAG EHEET
EMITEER - BREBRET - FBBLELRRSE
FEIMER [EERER] -



Corporate Governance Report

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition,
the Company arranges and provides continuous professional
development training and relevant materials to the Directors to help
ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts
its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company Director. The
Directors have provided to the Company their record of continuous
professional development training, and they have participated in
training activities in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for
listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial
reporting;

3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board Committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The members of each Board Committee are
non-executive Directors.

independent

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
system and risk management system of the Group, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.
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Members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Huang Wenli, Mr, Liu
Haifeng and Mr. Shao Shaomin (all are independent non-executive
Directors). Mr. Shao Shaomin currently serves as the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 14 March 2018,
the Audit Committee reviewed, among other things, the audited
financial statements for 2017 with recommendations to the Board
for approval and discussed with the management and the external
auditor the accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditor covering major
findings in the course of the audit and the accounting and financial
reporting matters.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules
and the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to establish and review the policy
and structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management and on
other employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Wenli, Mr. Liu Haifeng
and Mr. Shao Shaomin. Mr. Huang Wenli currently serves as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration Committee on 14 March
2018, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance
of the Directors and senior management of the Company, and
reviewed and recommended to the Board the remuneration policy
and structure relating to the Directors and senior management of
the Company.
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The remuneration for the Directors and senior management
comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus.
Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for 2017 are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 3 members of the senior
management of the Company, whose profile are set out on pages
15 to 16 of this annual report, for 2017 are set out below:

Number of
Remuneration band individual
Nil to HK$1,000,000 3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of our Directors,
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, to take up references and to consider related matters.
The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Huang Wenli, Mr.Liu Haifeng
and Mr. Shao Shaomin. Mr. Liu Haifeng currently serves as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection
process when necessary.
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Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of
the Board, which includes gender, age, cultural and educational
background, length of service, skills, knowledge and professional
experience of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee on 14 March
2018, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for
the nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition
of the Board and assessed independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, namely:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(ii) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities trading)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board will continue to review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuous professional development
participations of the Directors, as well as the Company’s compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During 2017, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services
provided by the Group’s external auditor are set out below:

TEERRE

% BB 35 BN

20174 - AEESMNSZ SN KRS 2 EXZ A,/
RS NHEEERIM TR :

2017
20175
RMB’000
AR¥ T
Audit and audit related services Tt RESHEBRS 1,440
Non-audit services: Professional service fees in IEIRT - BASEFARREES
relation to initial public BRANEXRBE
offering of the Group 730
Taxation and other s R EME RS
professional services 69
2,239

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Li Oi Lai (“Ms. Li") was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 18 March 2016, who was responsible for
handling company secretarial matters including compliance with
the companies ordinance. On 27 June 2017, Ms. Li resigned from
the role as the company secretary of the Company, and Ms. Hui Yin
Shan (“Ms. Hui”) was appointed as the successor of Ms, Li on the
same day. Ms. Hui was an assistant vice president of SW Corporate
Services Group Limited. Ms. Hui has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training. On 28 February 2018, Ms. Hui
resigned from the role as the company secretary of the Company,
and also Ms. Ho Ka Yan (“Ms. Ho") was appointed as the successor
of Ms. Hui on the same day.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounts department, is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial statements,
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been adopted.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and applied
consistently. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is included in the Report of the Independent Auditor on pages 70
to 78 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and the
Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least
annually covering material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate and effective. The Group adopts a risk management
system which manages the risk associated with its business and
operations. The system comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of

objectives.
Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.
Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”) 2013 framework. The COSO
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The
five key components of the COSO framework are shown as follows:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and structures

that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.
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Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve
the Group’s objectives, forming a basis for
determining how risks should be managed.
Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement

of objectives are carried out.

Internal and external communication to
provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Information and
Communication:

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal

control is present and functioning.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible
for risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant with professional staff in possession of
relevant expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order
to maintain high standards of corporate governance. The review
plan has been approved by the Board and Audit Committee. The
Board and Audit Committee has also reviewed the resources, staff
qualifications and experience and training programs of the external
independent consultant and considered they are adequate and
sufficient.
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With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
the relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO”) and the Listing Rules.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules
and regulations regarding the management of inside information,
including that all employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company, are required to comply with the securities
transaction rules adopted by the Company which are on terms no
less exacting than those required under the Listing Rules.

The Board and Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems during the period from Listing Date to the date of annual
report and believes that the existing systems are adequate and
effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject
to provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and
Listing Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting
(*AGM") of the Company to be held each year and at the venue as
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM,
is called an extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
BY SHAREHOLDERS AT GENERAL MEETING

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal
(the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the Company’s branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the
Board will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal may
be included in the agenda for the general meeting. If the request
has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder will be advised
of this outcome and, accordingly, a general meeting will not be
convened as requested.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and
the Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to
enquiries from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are
set out below:

Name: Mr. Sun Ho Chau
Telephone: (852) 2106 3238
Email: ryan.sun@morrisholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at the
following correspondence address and addressing to the Board:
Address: Unit 6707, 67/F, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, share registration and payment of dividend to Tricor
Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor Services Limited are
set out below:

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre 183
Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue
with the Shareholders and investors through various channels
including the Company’s AGM to answer Shareholders’ questions.
The chairman and other members of the Board are present at the
AGM. The annual report and AGM circular is distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the AGM, the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high level of
transparency.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum
of association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated
articles of association on the Listing Date.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group’s
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators
during 2017 are set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 5, pages 6 to 8 and pages 17 to 23 respectively of this
annual report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Principal risks
and uncertainties” and “Cambodia: Political and economic outlook”
on pages 24 to 26 and pages 27 to 33 respectively of this annual
report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND COMPLIANCE
WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Being manufacturing and trading companies in
the PRC, the Group is subject to various environmental laws and
regulations set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During 2017,
the Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the operations of the Group. Further,
any changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
from time to time.

A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will
be published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites
as close as possible to, and in any event no later than three months
after, the publication of the Company’s annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with
its employees, providing quality services to its customers and
enhancing cooperation with its business partners.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated with limited liability in Cayman
Islands. The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange with effect from 12 January 2017.

In connection with the Listing of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange, 250,000,000 new Shares of US$0.001 each
of the Company were issued at a price of HK$1.05 per Share for
a total cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$262,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB234,042,000). Dealings in the
Shares on the Stock Exchange commenced on 12 January 2017.

Upon the creation of the Company’s share premium account as a
result of the global offering, an amount of US$749,900 (equivalent
to approximately RMB5,185,000) standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company has been capitalised on 12
January 2017 by applying such sum towards paying up in full at par
a total of 749,900,000 ordinary shares for allotment and issue to the
then existing Shareholders. Immediately following the completion of
the global offering and the Capitalisation Issue, the total outstanding
Shares of the Company was 1,000,000,000 Shares including the
250,000,000 Shares issued upon the global offering.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
79 of this annual report.
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The Board recommended a payment of final dividend of HK3.8
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2017 payable on
29 June 2018 to all Shareholders on the register of members of the
Company on 15 June 2018 subject to approval by the Shareholders
in the forthcoming AGM.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during 2017 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 24 to the
Company'’s financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during 2017.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB333.3 million (31 December 2016:
RMB98.1 million).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Five year financial summary are set up in the sections headed “Five
Year Financial Summary” on page 168 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2017 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and CEQ)
Mr. CHEN Guohua

Mr. ZENG Jin

Mr. WANG Ming

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

(resigned on 31 May 2017)
(appointed on 6 July 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. ZHANG Bingbing
Mr. HUANG Wenli
Mr. SHAO Shaomin
Mr. LIU Haifeng

(resigned on 31 May 2017)

(appointed on 6 July 2017)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election for the forthcoming year. Mr. Chen Guohua, Mr. Zeng
Jin and Mr. Shao Shaomin will retire at the forthcoming AGM and
will offer themselves for re-election. The terms of office of Mr. Shen
Zhidong and Mr. Liu Haifeng will expire at the forthcoming AGM,
and both Mr. Shen and Mr. Liu will offer themselves for re-election.
None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, unless terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring at the
end of the initial term.

Independent non-executive Directors Mr. Shao Shaomin and Mr,
Huang Wenli have been appointed on 10 December 2016 and Mr.
Liu Haifeng has been appointed on 6 July 2017. They are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the Company at
least once every three years and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Company or the
respective independent non-executive Director.

No Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM
has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions And Continuing Connected Transactions” and the
related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2017 or at
any time during 2017.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at the date of this report, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provision of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, are

set out below:

(M

(i)

The Company

AR

Name of Director/

chief executive

Ex FETHABHRSR

Nature of Interest

@Mt
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EENES2ER

RAFHRBY  ARRZEEREFTRABRA
NR R EAAEEE (RE 5 RRERDIEXVEE T
ZHFE) 2B - HERD REERETEAIRER
H R EVE GBI EXVERE 7 M8 BB B A A 1A &) K Bk
R (BREBREESFLRMERIIESIRESERH
MR IR ) FAREE R IE IRDI$ 35216787
AHBRMKATE [RETR ] WEEARHT
LI

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

HREBDL

Number of securities
(Note 1)
EEHEE (MEE1)

Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2)
Bkt (Misz2)

Note 1:

Note 2:

RypRE S

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in
such Shares.

Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as
to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou
Gebing will therefore be deemed, or taken to be,
interested in the same number of Shares in which
Morris Capital is interested.

Morris Capital (Note 1)
REEXR (M=)

Name of Director/

chief executive

B TETHABHSR

Nature of Interest

EEME

Interest of controlled corporation

750,000,000 Shares (L) 75%

750,000,000/% (L)

BEE1 . FEIL RRZAEZ SR PR
Ao
ex2: RBFEXAARAF (RFEAD @

MR EKEHABE% » Bt - RIFFE
R ERD - PHREEEBR B
WEENRBELAHARENREFH
B R R o

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

ERET D

Number of securities
(Note 2)
EFHHA (ME2)

Mr. Zou Gebing
BT E

RELE s

Interest of controlled corporation

85 Shares of 85%
US$1 each (L)
85 EAR1ZETT

BB (L)
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Note 1: Morris Capital holds more than 50% of our Shares.
Therefore, Morris Capital is the holding company and
an associated corporation of our Company.

Note 2:  The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in

such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code as at the date of this report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at the date of this report, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO:

Shareholders Nature of interest

M1 RBEABEARBRNE0%M L -
Bt - RREARARAMZERAF
KAREEEE -
a2 . FEIL KRZBALRZERNH
MR
BREXPEEEN  BEAFRAS  ARFIZE

ERESTHRASHER AR R NECAREER
(RBHF LB GRPIEXVERE T 2®%) 2B - 8
Ml ERERE AL ARERE S LBAEFRIE
352RA TR IF 2 B MR BERE T AIABAAR
A MR Z R EMEA - Rik - AR REME

LN A
MmO

FERRZERS

RAFHA Y - NRRBRIEFE NS 15533614
FEZTERREBCMEBETR - TIBRR (KARE
ERITHRARGI) RARB S EHITRAPEEE

RIS A R

Number of
Shares/underlying
Shares held (Note 1)

Percentage of
Shares of the
Company in issue

Portfolio Master Fund Limited

e 81T HARATEBITRE
REREB HEME ZEREAE (M) ZHBHNBE D
Morris Capital (Note 2) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
RAER (MsE2) EnfEAA 750,000,0008%(L)
Wu Xiangfei (Note 3) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
Bhra Mz £ (KisE3) BB s 750,000,0008%(L)
RAYS Capital Partners Limited Investment manager 90,112,000 Shares (L) 9.01% (L)
BRERERRQA] REKE 90,112,0008%(L)
Ruan David Ching-chi Interest of controlled corporation 90,112,000 Shares (L) 9.01% (L)
Uy REAE RS 90,112,0008%(L)
Asian Equity Special Opportunities Beneficial owner 70,034,000 Shares (L) 7% (L)
L)

DMNBRERIREREEAES Emig A
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Note 1: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2: Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15%
by Ms. Wu Xiangfei.

Note 3: Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the
SFO, Ms. Wu Xiangfei will therefore be deemed, or taken to
be, interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Zou

Gebing is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/
or underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at
the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were
entered into or existed during 2017.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and
retaining its employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees and makes contributions to social
security insurance funds (including pension plans, medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance
and maternity insurance) and housing fund for its employees.
The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and remuneration package of the Directors and
chief executive of the Group, having regard to the Group’s overall
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for 2017 are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors (including their spouse and children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted as at 31 December 2017 or at any time during 2017.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Morris Capital, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei
(each a “Non-Compete Covenantor”) has entered into a deed of
non-competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) dated 10 December
2016 with the Company, to the effect that each of them will not
directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or
otherwise be involved in any business which may be in competition
with the business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the
Non-Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the
non-competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition
during 2017.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the
Non-Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the
non-competition undertakings during 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During 2017, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out below:

The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Haining Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd. (“Haining Gelin Furniture”),
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo Leather
Products”), Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd. (*Haining Morris
Home Gallery”), and Haining Morris International Home Furnishings
Co., Ltd. ("Haining Morris International”), each as tenant entered into
the lease agreements with Morris PRC as landlord on 1 January 2016
(the “Existing Lease Agreements”) for the lease of various premises
located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC (the “Existing Lease
Properties”) for factory, direct sale store and office use. However,
as the area of Existing Leased Properties was insufficient to meet
the production requirements of the Group, Haining Gelin Furniture,
Haining Morris Home Gallery, Haining Morris International (each
as tenant) entered into new lease agreements (the “New Lease
Agreements”) with Morris PRC (as landlord) on 17 March 2017 for
the lease of new leased properties (the “New Leased Properties”)
located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory, exhibition
hall, dormitory, canteens, office and research and development
center use for a term of three years commencing from 17 March
2017 and expiring on 16 March 2020. The major terms of the Existing
Lease Agreements and the New Lease Agreements are as follows:
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Leased Rent per
area annum
Lease agreement Term Tenant Landlord (sg. m.) (RMB)
HEEE gFHES
HEHH R BE E£3 (F7%K) (AR#®R)
Existing lease agreement
REHEHE
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Apollo Leather Morris PRC 40,226.08  2,896,277.76
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) Products
MIMRER F S EEHE 201615 1A 2202651 A1H IR ER 2 8m RETE
(BEERMA)
Haining Gelin Furniture 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Haining Gelin Furniture Morris PRC 19,990.35  1,439,305.20
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERKZAREHE 20161518 £202651 A1H BERHFA RETE
(BEERMA)
Haining Morris Home Gallery 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Haining Morris Home Gallery  Morris PRC 39,312.00  2,830,464.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERTURZXEHERE 201661518 £202651 A1H BERTHRZE RETE
(BEERMA)
Haining Morris International 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Haining Morris International ~ Morris PRC 1,000.00 72,000.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERRBERAEHE 201651 f1BE2026%1 A 1H BERRER RAHE
(BEERMA)
New lease agreement
FEREHE
Haining Morris Home Gallery 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Haining Morris Home Gallery ~ Morris PRC 40,474.00  2,914,128.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERRERZERENZ 201763 A178 22020637 168 BERTEZRE RETE
(BEEEMA)
Haining Morris Home Gallery 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Haining Morris Home Gallery  Morris PRC 20,532.00  1,478,304.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERRERZERE NS 201763178 52020637168 BERTHRZE RETE
(BEEEMA)
Haining Gelin Furniture 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Haining Gelin Furniture Morris PRC 19,723.00  1,420,056.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERNR ARG HE 2017638178 52020537 168 BERHZA RADE
(REEEMA)
Haining Gelin Furniture 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Haining Gelin Furniture Morris PRC 9,300.00 669,600.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERHR ARG HE 201763178 52020637 168 BERMREA RETE
(REEEMA)
Haining Morris International 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Haining Morris International ~ Morris PRC 6,400.00 460,800.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERRARESHE 2017638178 5202053A 168 BERRER RATE
(BEEEMA)
Haining Morris International 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020 Haining Morris International ~ Morris PRC 4,608.00 331,776.00
Lease Agreement (both days inclusive)
BERTARESHE 2017638178 52020537168 BERAER RATE

(RIEEEMA)
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The aggregated annual caps of the Existing Lease Agreements
and the New Lease Agreements for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the years ending 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 are
RMB15 million, RMB15 million, RMB15 million and RMB15 million,
respectively. For further details of the New Lease Agreement, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2017.

As the entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr.
Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Morris PRC is, accordingly, an
associate of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of
the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Sales Agreement with Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. (“Jennifer
Convertibles™)

Mstar International Trading (HK) entered into a sales agreement with
Jennifer Convertibles (the “Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement”)
on 1 January 2016, pursuant to which our Group agreed to supply
sofas to Jennifer Convertibles.

The Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement is valid until either (i) the
expiry of a period of three years or (ii) the date on which Jennifer
Convertibles ceases to be our connected person, whichever comes
earlier. Both parties to the agreement may negotiate to extend
the agreement for a further term of three years within two months
before the expiry of the three-year term of the agreement unless the
agreement is terminated due to Jennifer Convertibles ceasing to be
our connected person.
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The annual caps of the sales by our Group to Jennifer Convertibles
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 and the year
ending 31 December 2018 are RMB32.0 million, RMB32.0 million
and RMB32.0 million respectively.

As the entire issued share capital of Jennifer Convertibles is owned
by Mr. Zou Gebing, Jennifer Convertibles is, accordingly, an
associate of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person
of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Since the highest relevant percentage ratio under the Listing
Rules in respect of each of the transactions contemplated under
the Lease Agreements and the New Lease Agreements and the
Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement is expected to be, on an
annual basis, less than 5%, the transactions will be exempt pursuant
to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’
approval requirement but will be subject to the announcement,
annual reporting and annual review requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further
summarised as follows:

Jennifer ConvertiblesH$5& &5 RN E £2016
F R2017F12A31H IEFE U K E =20185F 124
SIBLEFEDRRARBI20BEE T - ARS32.0
BETMARK32.08&T °

Jennifer Convertibles® 8 2 2 1T AR AN A 1%
FEER Bt RE LRI E14A071%
Jennifer Convertibles @& R ENBEA - A
ifrJennifer Convertibles B4R F Z BE AL ©

R LR AIE RS REE R KJennifer
Convertiblest§ & E THETR H M & = HH
Ao R FEEETE i‘;é\ﬁﬂfﬁiﬁ%%vaﬁzsz%*%
HHERR R BT MR AIE14A.76(2) &80 A (a%
BYMBER) REMREIERT 15#1"2/\
ETRAFUAZTEBTHRE irﬁ%&&ﬁ&:%
BIRE °

Bl ERERZHFIEE - SRENT

Transaction

amount for  Annual Cap for

Name of connected party Nature of transaction 2017 2017
20174 20175

BEHLNER RHEME XEEH EBR
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥®TR

Morris PRC A B Lease of properties Y% HE 11,733 15,000
Jennifer Convertibles Supply of sofas &) 27,009 32,000
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The continuing connected transaction mentioned above has been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transaction has been entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on
normal commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transaction on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transaction
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, made during 2017 is disclosed
in note 30 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The corporation governance report of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 34 to 49 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During 2017, sales to the Group’s five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 65.8% and 56.3% of the total revenue and purchases
for the year, respectively. The Group’s largest customer accounted
for around 18.7% of the total revenue for the year. The Group’s
largest supplier accounted for around 16.8% of the total purchase
for the year.

At no time during 2017 did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a Shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association, every director of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
for appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions against its directors and officers arising
out of corporate activities. The level of the coverage is reviewed
annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during 2017
or subsisted as at 31 December 2017.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Company Listed its shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 January 2017. Net proceeds from the listing were
approximately HK$218.6 million (after deduction of the underwriting
commission and relevant expenses), which are intended to be
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applied in the manner as disclosed in the prospectus of the Z£Z18 . RNAMEHHE » FHATEHRIBEFEZEMEH
Company dated 30 December 2016 (the “Prospectus”). As at the T :
date of this report, the net proceeds from the Listing were utilized
as follows:
Amount Amount
utilised as unutilised as
Actual net at the date at the date
proceeds of this report of this report
RAEFRE REHSE
BRFAE RHEEHA AEREBA
RIERE &8 &8
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
B&ET B &8 A& ET
Further expansion of sales E—FSNREER L HBE
and marketing network 68.5 68.5 =
Repay bank borrowings BEEBTER 57.7 57.7 -
Brand recognition in furniture market RaRNRETSHRERTE 56.8 48.0 8.8
Working capital BEES 21.4 12.5 8.9
Expansion of the manufacturing REPRIBENEL
capabilities in Cambodia 14.2 14.2 -
Total BEt 218.6 200.9 17.7

The unutilized net proceeds from the Listing have been deposited
in the bank accounts of the Group.

The use of IPO proceeds is faster than expected with an excess
amount of HKD54.6 million, which was expected to be expended
from 2018 to 2020. It was due to the Company’s strategy to boost
a faster growth of the business by spending more on promotion
activities and sales network expansion.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option
Scheme allows the Company to grant options to eligible person(s)
(the “Eligible person(s)”) as rewards or rewards for their contribution
to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised
as follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes which may be adopted
by the Group from time to time pursuant to which options to
subscribe for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes”)
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the date of the listing of the Shares of the Stock Exchange,
i.e. 12 January 2017 (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares)
unless Shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which
must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number of Shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
100,000,000 Shares, which represents 10% of the issued
Shares as at the date of this report.

2. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to an Eligible Person under
the Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time, and provided that if approved by
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons
abstained from voting, the Company may make further
grant of options to such Eligible Person notwithstanding
that the further grant would result in the Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and Other Scheme
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of the
further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.
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38 An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to
be determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible
Person provided that the period within which the option must
be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of the grant of option.

4. HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant.

5% The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date of the listing of
the Shares of the Stock Exchange, i.e. 12 January 2017.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption up to the date
of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association although there is no restriction against such rights under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules since Listing Date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
audited by Ernst and Young who shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM.
Having approved by the Board upon the recommendation of the
Audit Committee, a resolution to re-appoint Ernst and Young as the
independent auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board to
fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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Directors’ Report

ESEEWE

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement (“Convertible Loan Agreement”) with IFC, pursuant to
which IFC agreed to lend, and the Company agreed to borrow,
a convertible loan (“Convertible Loan”) in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the right to convert all or any
part of the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Loan
into shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22
per share (subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
Agreement). On the assumption that the Convertible Loan would
be converted into shares of the Company in full at the conversion
price of HK$2.22 per share, the aggregate principal amount
of the Convertible Loan of HK$200,000,000 is convertible into
approximately 90,090,090 Shares, which represent approximately
9.01% of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this report and approximately 8.26% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the Shares upon full exercise of the Convertible Loan at the initial
conversion price (without taking into account any Shares which may
be issued by the Company after the date of this report). The initial
conversion price represents a premium of approximately 29.82%
of the closing price of HK$1.71 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 5 January 2018. The net proceeds of the Convertible
Loan (after deducting the fees and expenses in relation to obtaining
the Convertible Loan) were approximately HK$196.5 million, which
are intended to be utilised to finance the Company’s capacity
expansion program for additional production facilities and working
capital in Cambodia and the PRC and refinancing of short term debt.
Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 January
2018 and 24 January 2018 for further details.
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Pursuant to the Convertible Loan Agreement and as one of the
conditions of disbusement, each of Mr. Zou, Ms. Wu Xiangfei,
Mr. Zou’s spouse and one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, Morris PRC, a company owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
as to 15% by Ms. Wu, and IFC entered into a share retention and
undertaking agreement pursuant to which, among others, Mr. Zou
has undertaken to at all times maintain his controlling stake (being
not less than 51% interests) in the Company and Morris PRC and
not to transfer his shares in Morris Capital, one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou
and 15% by Ms. Wu, or Morris PRC if, giving effect to such transfer,
Mr. Zou will not be able to maintain his controlling stake in the
Company or Morris PRC mentioned above for so long as any part
of the Convertible Loan is outstanding or any amount is available
for disbursement under the Convertible Loan Agreement and for so
long as IFC holds any equity securities of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board

ZOU Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 14 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Morris
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 79 to 167, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

RRETER

HRBRERBRDFRR
(REESFHEEMALZFRLA])

HMEEER (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBEEEF TR NMEHE

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

BRERBEFERE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recorded inventories of
RMB343 million after provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories of RMB7 million, which accounted for 31% of the
Group’s total assets.
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The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories is
estimated based on the net realisable value of the inventories
with reference to the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group manufactures sofas, sofa covers and
other furniture products which are subject to changing consumer
demands and fashion trends of the sofa industry, and this
increases the level of judgement involved in estimating inventory
provision. We focused on this area because significant judgement
is required to assess the provision for items which may be
ultimately obsolete or sold below cost as a result of a reduction
in consumer demand. Such judgements include management’s
expectations for future sales of goods and product durability and
market value of materials used in the production.
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The disclosures in relation to inventories are included in notes 3
and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included evaluating
management’s basis adopted by the Group for
its policy of the provision against obsolete and
slow-moving inventories and the assessment of
the slow-moving or obsolete inventories. We also
evaluated the estimates and underlying data
used by the Group in calculating the provision
by checking the ageing profile of inventories,
the historical sales and usage records of
the inventories and the usages and sales of
inventories made after the year end.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEFEE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREE T RNTREH

Impairment assessment of trade and bills receivables

E D EW IR R [E W15 5 (I

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had trade receivables and
bills receivable of RMB389 million, which represented 35% of total
assets of the Group.
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Management performs impairment assessment of trade and
bills receivables regularly. The impairment assessment is based
on the evaluation of collectability and terms of the receivables,
including the due dates, debtors’
and business relationship with the Group.

repayment history, reputation
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We focused on this area because the impairment assessment of
receivables is estimated by management through the application
of significant judgement.
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The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included, on a sampling
basis, checking the aging of receivable
balances, the debtors’ historical payment
patterns and the bank receipts for the payment
received subsequent to the end of the reporting
period as well as the latest correspondence with
debtors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

BEBFEE

BRAERERDARR
(RAESHEZMALZEFRLA])
BRETER (F)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREE P RNTREHE

Derecognition of trade and bills receivables
AR E S IR JEW IR

The Group entered into trade receivable factoring agreements
with recourse with financial institutions for the factoring of trade
receivables from certain designated customers. The Group
also discounted some of its bills receivable accepted by banks
in Mainland China on a recourse basis to obtain financing. In
addition, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable to certain
of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers.
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As at 31 December 2017, discounted or endorsed bills receivable
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB117 million were fully
derecognised from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, whereas factored trade receivables and total discounted
or endorsed bills receivables amounting to RMB34 million and
RMB5 million, respectively, were not derecognised from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.
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We focused on this area because application of significant
judgement by management is required to determine whether, and
to what extent, the risks and rewards of the factored, discounted
or endorsed trade and bills receivables that have been transferred
to the financial institutions or suppliers at the end of the reporting
period.
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The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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We evaluated the terms and conditions of
the factoring, discounting or endorsement
arrangements of trade and bills receivables
entered into by the Group and checked the
risks such as default risk and slow payment
risk retained by the Group and the amounts of
trade and bills receivables derecognised by the
Group.
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We then assessed the accounting treatment on
the derecognition of trade and bills receivables.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

18 M % BE R

BRBERAERDBBRR
(RAESHEZMALZEFRLA])
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

To the shareholders of Morris Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chiu Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong
14 March 2018

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&ERERA T
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GeEBEmkEMZEKER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F 12 A 31 BILFE

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARBT ARBT T
REVENUE LN 5 1,199,714 941,617
Cost of sales 85 &5 B AR (826,008) (671,050)
Gross profit EH 373,706 270,567
Other income and gains H U A Rz 5 13,399 16,449
Selling and distribution expenses HE R ERE (102,331) (82,000)
Administrative expenses TR (72,251) (77,321)
Other expenses and losses Hih M R EiE (2,797) (1,318)
Finance costs BB 6 (11,670) (14,332)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AT R 7 198,056 112,045
Income tax expense FriSfiA 10 (38,201) (31,369)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 159,855 80,676
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ~ Eft & W
Other comprehensive income not to REZERII R EF 72
be reclassified to profit or Bamm A2 E K -
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation & 85K HIME K25
of financial statements (11,356) 3,031
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZEHKRRLE
FOR THE YEAR 148,499 83,707
Profit attributable to owners of the parent B2 ¥R AJEMG % F 159,855 80,676
Total comprehensive income attributable B2 BB AL
to owners of the parent 2HIK AR 148,499 83,707
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE S QRIEEERISEE AEWN
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS BRER
OF THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted HARKEE RMB16.11 cents RMB10.76 cents

AR¥16.115 AR®10.765
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e WA R R

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

2017 2016
20174 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR® Tt AREETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE -~ BE MR E 13 57,638 44,092
Prepaid land lease payments A LA E IR 14 7,054 7,641
Deferred tax assets BEERRIEEE 23 1,941 2,986
Total non-current assets JEmBEEBRE 66,633 54,719
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories 78 15 343,289 314,543
Trade and bills receivables B SRR IE M EKEE 16 389,002 219,980
Prepayments, deposits and TEFIE -« ke REARER
other receivables RIE 17 88,844 218,294
Pledged deposits [REEEEIER Y 18 181,861 220,822
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 18 26,241 73,647
Total current assets MBEELRRE 1,029,237 1,047,286
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Trade and bills payables 2 5N RENRE 19 438,206 542,715
Other payables and accruals HaEMRIE R ERTE R 20 51,497 72,863
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTRIRTTREMR 21 149,659 277,183
Warranty provision RIERE 22 3,292 2,790
Income tax payables FERT 1SR 61,520 43,810
Total current liabilities mEN B ERRE 704,174 939,361
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 325,063 107,925
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEAERTEBAE
LIABILITIES 391,696 162,644
continued/...
&/
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

2017 2016
201745 20164F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR® Tt AREETTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kFRBEE

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE 23 8,942 3,880

Net assets BEFE 382,754 158,764

EQUITY R

Equity attributable to owners of BAREE ARGER

the parent

Share capital A&7 24 6,914 1

Reserves (e 25 375,840 158,763

Total equity MR 382,754 158,764

Zou Gebing
MEE
Director

EF

Chen Guohua
PR ED £
Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SEREZBER

Year ended 31 December 2017

HZE 2017 F 12 A 31 BILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BN RER AES
Exchange
Share Share fluctuation Reserve Retained
capital premium reserve funds profits Total
BE  ROEE ELRBRE #REEE  REEA @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTT AR%®TR ARBTR AR®TRT AR®TR AR%Tn
(note 24)  (note 25(i))(note 25(ii)) (note 25(iii))
(Miit24)  (Hizt2s5(i)) (Hiitsi))  (Kizt2s(ii)
At 1 January 2016 20161718 1 - 7,528 8,081 59,447 75,057
Profit for the year FREF - - - = 80,676 80,676
Other comprehensive income ERNHMbEEKES
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation B E B i8R HIE 58
of financial statements = = 3,031 - - 3,031
Total comprehensive income EREEREERE
for the year = = 3,031 - 80,676 83,707
At 31 December 2016 and M2016%12H31H
1 January 2017 K2017461/18 1 = 10,559* 8,081* 140,123* 158,764
Profit for the year FRET - - - - 159,855 159,855
Other comprehensive loss FRNEMLEZEESE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation  #E B SRR HE N =5
of financial statements - - (11,356) - - (11,356)
Total comprehensive income FRNEERSEE
for the year - - (11,356) - 159,855 148,499
Transfer from retained profits BRAREEF - - - 3,919 (3,919) =
Issue of shares pursuant to the BEARAF ET
Listing of the Company BIRM 1,728 232,314 - - - 234,042
Capitalisation issue of shares RIVETERE 5,185 (5,185) - - - -
Expenses incurred in connection with 24737 R %
issue of new shares - (15,229) - - - (15,229)
Dividends paid BIRERE = = = = (143,322)  (143,322)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 6,914 211,900* (797)* 12,000* 152,737* 382,754

*

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED &= ER AT

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB375,840,000 (2016: RMB158,763,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

158,763,0007T) °

* ZEHEREREAVBRLRANGS
# A R #375,840,0007C (20164 : A K ¥



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F 12 A 31 BILFE

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T ARBEFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax ¥ 250 A g A 198,056 112,045
Adjustments for: FEIFAE :
Interest income F EUA 5] (3,473) (1,968)
Depreciation e 7 5,900 2,690
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - HE MK EHEE
plant and equipment, net REIE - B8 7 139 334
Gain on disposal of an available-for- & —IE A HEREH
sale investment Wz 5 = (9)
Recognition of prepaid land lease EREMN L AERE
payments 7 163 160
Impairment of trade receivables H 5 W GRIE R E 7 95 154
Write-down of inventories to WMRTEZES#RFE
net realisable value 7 (1,366) 2,790
Reversal of provision against obsolete [ K i& 17 & & @
and slow-moving inventories 7 (7,898) (950)
Product warranty additional provision 2R RIEFBIMERE 7 3,405 4,104
Reversal of unutilised product REAEMRIEREE
warranties 22 = (2,092)
Finance costs BAE R AR 6 11,670 14,332
206,691 131,590
Increase in inventories FE®Em (19,868) (115,550)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and & 5 WA R ER R
bills receivables (3gm) R (178,922) 76,454
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  FATFIE - 24 M EH b EU
deposits and other receivables FIERF A (8 0n) 129,441 (165,928)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B o RNRENMENRE
bills payables R A>) /48 (104,509) 66,252
(Decrease)/increase in other payables H b fEf 3B K ERTE A
and accruals R A>),/ 48 (21,561) 8,682
Decrease in warranty provision RERE R (2,632) (3,684)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & & 7153/ (FTH) B4 8,640 (2,184)
Income tax paid 2SR (12,565) (14,259)
Net cash flows used in operating KEEE AR REFE
activities (3,925) (16,443)
continued/...
&/
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F 12 A31 BHILEFE

2017 2016
201745 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARET T ARBEFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchases of items of BEME BERKEEE
property, plant and equipment SR NS (22,716) (5,591)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BERKBER
property, plant and equipment B PTIS IR 736 396
Proceeds from disposal of an Hj%—lﬁﬁ—fﬁi\ﬂi%?ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ
available-for-sale investment FriS 518 - 26,009
Interest received EHFIE 3,473 1,968
Loan to a director M—R2EBEXK = (13,382)
Repayment of a loan to a director M—RESEEE = 13,382
Repayment from related parties BE BN = 214,390
Advances to related parties iﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%&%ﬁ = (116,840)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEMITERORLD ()
deposits 38,961 (124,345)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing & EEFTE ./ (FTFA)
activities ReEmEFHE 20,454 (4,013)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHRENRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FrERTTIER 579,609 645,836
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITIER (704,116) (572,041)
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHRPTIS BB 234,042 =
Expenses paid in connection with METROBENAZ
the issue of shares (15,229) =
Dividends paid BRI E (143,322) -
Interest paid ERFIE (11,670) (14,332)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing RYEE®) (FTA), Fifs
activities REMEFHE (60,686) 59,463
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERASZEY (RD),/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ENFERE (44,157) 39,007
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHeRESEEYD
beginning of year 73,647 33,131
Effect of foreign exchange rate INESTE RSB E - F5E
changes, net (3,249) 1,509
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£xB&RESZEY
END OF YEAR 26,241 73,647
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HE&RBESSEWEHI T
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTRERR 18 26,241 73,647

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&ERERA T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries as the “Group”) is an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Unit 6707, 67/F, The Center, 99
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since
12 January 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Morris Capital
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI").

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

RAREEEHR

RAERERAR ([RRAE] ERENB A
AHEEAIAEE]) A—RNHASHSHEM
R HEREERAR - AATNEMHRE
EEibilt ACricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands ° NARIH) £ 2 & 5B AL
& 2 R KEF95 IR 067186707

==
=
£ °

KABRMDE B2017F1 B 12BN BB
ERGEARARERLET -

ARBRB—FKEREERAR - FAREEH
TEXBREERHEDE  DPEERHEM
HREEM °

EERA/ARANERARREZZERQA

BRRBERNERAR > ZRAREBREX
#E (([RERLES]) EMaL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. 2AFARKEESR &)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries K8 2 R &R
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as RRBEEMBARFBEHET
follows:
Issued

Place of ordinary share Percentage of
incorporation/ capital/paid-up equity attributable

registration registered to the Company Principal
Company name and business capital Direct Indirect activities
Rl AAE GRS
FRREE CTRTZBERE S ERils

NCIE=E b B BEEMBRA B Mg TEER

Mstar International Hong Kong/ HK$100 = 100%  Trading of sofas,
Trading (HK) Limited** United States sofa covers and

of America other furniture
products

EXEHEKRES (%) 'S/ 10074 7T - 100% BEIPEIBER
BRAF] EH HREEMR

Haining Morris International The People’s RMB2,000,000 = 100%  Trading of other
Home Furnishings Republic of China furniture products
Co., Ltd.* (the “PRC”)

(BERTEBRERE
BRAE)(a)

BERTEBRERE hE ARAME ARY2,000,0007T - 100% EEHEHMEREE
BRAF(a) (THE )

Zhejiang Apollo Leather The PRC US$615,000 = 100%  Manufacture and
Products Co., Ltd.* sale of sofa
(IR B £ 8 covers
BERAF)(D)

T ] 52 78 52 5 4 i I 615,000% 7T - 100% HERHEDEE
BHRAF(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued
ordinary share
capital/paid-up

REAREEEHR (4

MEIRER (&)

Percentage of
equity attributable

2

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

g}
<

registration registered to the Company Principal
Company name and business capital Direct Indirect activities
ML AR R EIEERE
ERREE CSRTZBERES Aotk
NCIECE it B BUR MR A HiE Mg TEER
Haining Morris Home The PRC US$3,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and
Gallery Co., Ltd.* sale of
(BEHEFHR upholstered sofas
RIEBRAF)(b)
BERRERRE 1 3,000,000% 7T - 100% AERHEHEDH
BRAF(b)
Zhejiang Morris Fashion The PRC US$20,000,000 = 100%  Manufacture and
Home Co., Ltd.* sale of
(Formerly known as upholstered sofas
“Haining Gelin Furniture
Co., Ltd.”)
CIMIRAR =
RKEBRAT)
(A8 BERMK A
BRARI) (c)
HIRBEHREBR QA [ 20,000,000% 7T - 100% HENEEEZRDH
(ATHE BEERMKAFR
~a]) (c)
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. The Kingdom of US$5,000,000 = 100%  Not yet commenced
Cambodia operation
(“Cambodia”)
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. RIFEREE 5,000,000 7T - 100%  RARFIREE
(MRiEzE])
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(a) This entity is registered as a domestic enterprise under
the laws of the PRC.

(b) These entities are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint
ventures under the laws of the PRC.

(c) This company is registered as a wholly-owned foreign
enterprise under the laws of the PRC.

* The English names of these entities represent
management’s best effort at translating their Chinese
names as these entities did not register any official
English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise
indicated.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&ERERA T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

2.1

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

RRERE ()
RaEE

REVBRERBEASEERZ2017F124
S1HIEFEMBERE -

MEBARAHRARREENFEEENHER
(BREBUER) EAKERZ2EKREYH
SMEBMAERBNERESIHEE
Y HRENEBHFEEHRNEN (AE TR
SERENATEREHRMABEIDNERT
R REZEE R - REUSEHIE -

WARRERKEEHEEINEREHROHKN
ZHREESBOER - AIREERFHE
ERRAEHREHRNENREEE LI
BEERBER B

(a) HERBEHSRHEHMEEFRBEANGOR
BE

(b) EHMENLHMELNEN &

(c) AKENREENBERERE -

MY A B M S IR R AR 5 R IRE
ARRHERNBREAMRE - HEARMNE
BFEASERGEFEEAERSAR I
EBEA NREEXEZAHAZEHEERR
1k e

BEahkEte2ARESERTIEEBRA
SEBRFZHEAA - AEEKE AR ZMH
MRXSEENMESERNEERERE  #
7 WA XHEREREVEFSRERK
EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

21

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure Initiative
Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
included in Annual Entities: Clarification of the
Improvements to Scope of HKFRS 12
HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&ERERA T

2.1
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2.2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a
significant financial effect on these financial statements.

Disclosure has been made in note 26 to the financial
statements upon the adoption of amendments to HKAS 7,
which require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes

arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The nature and the impact of the amendments are described

below:

(a)

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Disclosure of the
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
is provided in note 26 to the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify that an entity, when
assessing whether taxable profits will be available
against which it can utilise a deductible temporary
difference, needs to consider whether tax law restricts
the sources of taxable profits against which it may
make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances
in which taxable profit may include the recovery of
some assets for more than their carrying amount.
The amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the Group
has no deductible temporary differences or assets
that are in the scope of the amendments.
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31 December 2017
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c) Amendments to HKFRS 12 clarify that the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12, other than those disclosure
requirements in paragraphs B10 to B16 of HKFRS 12,
apply to an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate, or a portion of its interest in a
joint venture or an associate that is classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group classified as
held for sale. The amendments have had no impact on
the Group’s financial statements as the Group does
not have any subsidiaries classified as a disposal
group held for sale as at 31 December 2017 and so
no additional information is required to be disclosed.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

Amendments to Classification and
HKFRS 2 Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'’
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts'’
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 (2011) Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!
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2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)
Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
HKFRS 16 Leases?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to Investments in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures?
Amendments to Transfers of Investment
HKAS 40 Property’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28°
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to the following
2015-2017 Cycle standards:

— HKFRS 3 Business Combinations?
— HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

— HKAS 12 Income Taxes?

— HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below. Of those
standards, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 will be applicable for
the Group’s financial year ending 31 December 2018 and
are expected to have an impact upon adoption. Whilst
management has performed a detailed assessment of the
estimated impacts of these standards, that assessment is
based on the information currently available to the Group,
including expectations of the application of transitional
provision options and policy choices. The actual impacts
upon adoption could be different to those below, depending
on additional reasonable and supportable information being
made available to the Group at the time of applying the
standards and the transitional provisions and policy options
finally adopted.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all previous
versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from

introduces new

1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments
against the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed
assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The
key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
includes:
(a) for non-substantial modifications of financial
liabilities that do not result in derecognition, the
carrying amount of the relevant financial liabilities
will be calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows and discounted at the financial
liabilities’ original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustments
to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification;
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2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

(b)

the classification and measurement of financial assets
will depend on two assessments: the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity’s
business model for managing the financial asset.
The Group’s bills receivables of RMB4,842,000 as
at 31 December 2017 are managed with a business
model under which bills receivables are not held to
collect contractual cash flows as the Group regularly
discounts bills receivables to banks or endorsed
to suppliers prior to their expiry date. Accordingly,
these bills receivables will be reclassified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss; and

an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, lease receivables, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts that
are not accounted for at fair value through profit or
loss under HKFRS 9, will be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the
simplified approach and record lifetime expected
losses that are estimated based on the present
values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life
of all of its trade and other receivables. Furthermore,
the Group will apply the general approach and
record twelve-month expected credit losses that are
estimated based on the possible default events on its
receivables within the next twelve months.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15
provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue,
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group will adopt HKFRS 15 from 1 January
2018 and plans to adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS
15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements only to contracts that are not completed
before 1 January 2018.

information
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2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The Group’s principal activities consist of the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products
and the Group provides trade discounts or volume rebates for
some of these sales contracts with customers. Currently, the
Group recognises revenue from the sale of goods measured
at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net
of allowances, trade discounts and/or volume rebates. If
revenue cannot be reliably measured, revenue recognition
is deferred until the uncertainty is resolved. Under HKFRS
15, a transaction price is considered variable if a customer is
provided with trade discounts or volume rebates. The Group
is required to estimate the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled in the sales of its sofas, sofa covers and
other furniture products and the estimated amount of variable
consideration will be included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group
has decided to use the expected value method to estimate
the amount of allowances, trade discounts and volume
rebates as this method better predicts the amount of variable
consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The
Group has assessed that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group currently recognises revenue
and cost of sales under HKAS 18 when the customers have
a right to allowance, trade discounts and volume rebates.

In addition, the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may
result in more disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 Leases,
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees
to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The
standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees
— leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest
on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest
expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense
on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain
events, such as change in the lease term and change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will
continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating
leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and
lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1
January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact
of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering whether it
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2.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

will choose to take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs will be
adopted. As disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements,
at 31 December 2017, the Group had future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately RMB9,237,000. Upon adoption of
HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need to be
recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.
Further analysis, however, will be needed to determine the
amount of new rights of use assets and lease liabilities to
be recognised, including, but not limited to, any amounts
relating to leases of low-value assets and short term leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new
leases entered into before the date of adoption.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22, issued in June 2017, provides guidance on
how to determine the date of the transaction when applying
HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency and recognises
a non-monetary asset or liability. The interpretation clarifies
that the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset
(such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as
deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt of
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the
entity must determine the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration. Entities may apply
the interpretation on a full retrospective basis or on a
prospective basis, either from the beginning of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation
or the beginning of the prior reporting period presented
as comparative information in the financial statements of
the reporting period in which the entity first applies the
interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23, issued in July 2017, addresses the
accounting for income taxes (current and deferred) when
tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application
of HKAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”).
The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated
with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically
addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax
treatments separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity
makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities; (iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or
tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits
and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in
facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 January 2019. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2017 12 A 31 H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(1)
(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 33.3%

10% to 20%

20% to 33.3%

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment

have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated

on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is

depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and

the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant
and machinery and other items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost
less any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale,
its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits,
the availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other expenses
and losses.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
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31 December 2017
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed item of financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has
been realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
and losses in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.4

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

FESTEERRE (@)

TEAE @)
&g E ()
MBEREL

AEBEZEBWPBEREHRBERNTIA
BENHEARRERFAREREES LA
MIRRERIMFEMBRBRRNEGH - B
BERGOERBRAAEERRSAMR - At
ZHERAERELNRZRAELHFE - 1
BRHERR  AEBRATMENRSE
EUBERAL  (\NBREMRBETEREER
EFRAXMREGEE - k(i) & RER
SRR (WER) Rt -

i

RIEBASHEE

eRMEBENEBEEERE - BUASERMR K
1EFER ©

HWREERMEERS —BAR —EEARH
MmEA BN R TR BERRK - XIRE
BENERFRABER - AR KIERT
MR ITERREABERERFTABIAE
B MEREAENZHENERER -

EEEMITA

HIRF BRI ITH A ZEN R AR
BRBRFRELRE FAREREER
‘BERE AoREERSRABEEER

FERMBARNK 2R

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 3R

111



112

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions (Continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China
are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments, the assets
of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage
of the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension schemes. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully once made.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends and special dividends are recognised as a
liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the United States
dollar (“US$”). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies are RMB, the financial statements are presented in
RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the
end of each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period and
their profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular operation
is not recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of these subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements and have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

Impairment of receivables

The Group records impairment of receivables based

on assessment of the recoverability of receivables.
The identification of impairment of receivables requires
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different from the
original estimates, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying value of receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/write-back of doubtful debts in the reporting period

in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 24 FEETHEBE @)
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories RERBEREERE

The Group reviews an ageing analysis of its inventories
and the condition of its inventories at the end of each
reporting period, and makes provision against obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items which are identified as no
longer suitable for sale or use in the production. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions.

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying value of inventories and the write-down of
inventories recognised in the reporting period in which such
estimate is changed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.
When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

120 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&ERERA T

AEBRBEREHRESHEFTENRK DN
RIEFEWR  YHRESTHESHEXMA
FEENREREEFEHBELRE - &
BEEXERBESHBHZERRETNMGE
ZEFENTHRRE -

B R IR R AT B R PR AR R fh 3t
i B B s Bk R TR R B R (R 3
EERHEENEEER ARG AR
B3R 45 HIR AR M0 MRS AR B o

FEMEERME

REREHR  AEBEFEAAFERMEE
ELEATARETR - EEHRKAKEE
RO EE - AEESHIFSREEET
WMEANS EEEXRSELEMNERRE
EEAEAKEESE (AL ERLERAE
REREBEMEFNRSE) & AIFER
B AREREEXRATIRERATFRAE
TRABHORINBUEELER S ASHE
BRABEMZERRELEEENIZEENK
AmatE - B EEREER  EEELA
ERTERARKEEEXREELEMNR
e AREREENRREFEZER
EREMIRE °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of advances to suppliers

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for advances to suppliers at the end of each
reporting period. Advances to suppliers are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The identification of
impairment of advances to suppliers requires management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying value of advances to suppliers and impairment/
write-back of impairment in the reporting period in which
such estimate is changed.

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of its transactions in accordance with prevailing
tax regulations and makes tax provision accordingly.
However, judgement is required in determining the Group’s
provision for income taxes as there are many transactions
and calculations of which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
periods in which the determination is made. The carrying
amounts of current tax payables and deferred tax assets and
liabilities are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position and note 23 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Derecognition of factored trade receivables and
discounted/endorsed bills receivable

The Group has entered into arrangements with its bankers in
respect of the factoring of trade receivables and discounting
of bills receivable, or endorsed certain of its bills receivable
accepted by banks to certain of its suppliers in order to
settle the trade payables due to such suppliers. Based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements
and the credit quality and settlement pattern of the factored
trade receivables and discounted/endorsed bills receivable,
management has to determine whether the Group has
retained substantially the risks and rewards of certain
receivables, which include default risks relating to such
receivables. Details of the transfers of financial assets are
included in note 32 to the financial statements.

Warranty provision

As further explained in note 22 to the financial statements,
the Group makes provisions for the warranties it gives on the
sale of its products taking into account the Group’s current
sales levels and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns. As the Group is continually upgrading its product
designs and launching new models, it is possible that the
past experience of the level of repairs and returns is not
indicative of future claims that it will receive in respect of past
sales. Any increase or decrease in the actual claims would
affect profit or loss in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is the manufacture and
sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products. Since
this is the only reportable operating segment of the Group,
no further operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

Geographical information in respect of revenue from
external customers is not presented since most
of the Group’s revenue from external customers,
based on the locations of the products delivered to
the customers, is generated in the United States of
America. Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors,
the presentation of geographical information would
provide no additional useful information to the users
of the financial statements.

Non-current assets
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(b) FREBEE

2017 2016
20175 20164F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFIT

China (including Hong Kong) FE (BEEE) 22,214 9,888
Cambodia RIEEE 42,316 41,845
The United States of America = 162 =
64,692 51,733

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes deferred
tax assets.
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e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year is set out below:

DEER (@)
FRTEEFNER

HARERZFERANI0%IIA LHEE
2EPHRAEIIT

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Customer 1 E=h 224,824 N/A* i@ A
Customer 2 2FE2 221,818 211,028
Customer 3 ZFE3 156,363 142,823
Customer 4 BFE4 126,362 N/A* i i~
Customer 5 ®F5 N/A* & A+ 105,660

The corresponding revenue of these customers is not
disclosed as they individually did not contribute 10% or
more of the Group’s total gross revenue for the relevant
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added

tax.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

WA~ WA R W

WAEFrIHE B amilbRR
RENBEZIFE -

TR ED

AEBRWA - BB ARBESFTOT

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Revenue KA
Sales of goods HEE® 1,199,714 941,617
Other income and gains Hablg A B Wz
Interest income FEUW A 3,473 1,968
Exchange gains, net b5 s - F5E = 14,164
Government subsidies# BT R Bh# 8,269 140
Sales of scrap materials HERER 1,410 -
Gain on disposal of an HE—EAHEEREN
available-for-sale investment W z5 - 9
Others Hih 247 168
13,399 16,449
3 Subsidies have been received from the local governments 8 LA U BTN BB £ R

in Zhejiang Province in respect of successful listing in
Hong Kong and the Group’s contribution to sofa industry.
There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

SEEDPEEXNEMREOED -

M2017612H318 -

MEAELEH

BEEV R R AR B INE M (2016%F ¢

relating to these subsidies as at 31 December 2017 ) o
(2016: Nil).
FINANCE COSTS 6. REHNK
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Interest on bank loans 1TERFE 9,909 11,650
Interest on discounted bills Hﬁiﬁ,m}ﬁ%lj 8 1,761 2,682
11,670 14,332
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31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIBDEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBARB RTS8 (GEA) T5
(crediting): KIF -
2017 2016
201745 20164
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
5F23 AR¥T ARET T
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEMA 835,272 669,210
Depreciation e 13 5,900 2,690
Recognition of prepaid land lease TEfT i & FRIE R
payments 14 163 160
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEREE
plant and equipment, net*** 1B B REs1E - FEE 139 334
Minimum lease payments under LEREETHRE
operating leases HAERK 20,232 9,743
Auditor’s remuneration ZER & 1,440 1,510
Employee benefit expense (excluding {EERFFHE (RBIE
directors’ and Chief executives EERTETHRAR
remuneration (note 8)): e (415£8))
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind e TAMEYHZ 134,293 130,439
Pension scheme contributions* RRET I 8,876 9,073
143,169 139,512
Reversal of provision against obsolete  FRE K F& R 17 & B 5 B @ **
and slow-moving inventories** (7,898) (950)
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down of  7F%& (#Us#E ),
inventories to net realisable value** WOR 2= A] B3R R (B (1,366) 2,790
Impairment of trade receivables, net™™* & 5 eI 2B (& -
SHER 16 95 154
Product warranty additional provision  E Sh{RIEEEINEE 22 3,405 4,104
Foreign exchange differences, net PN ZF 58 6,959 (14,164)
Listing expenses X 1,943 22,622
* At 31 December 2017, the Group had no forfeited * M2017612A318 - AEEW & B8
contributions available to reduce its contributions to LT (35K AT HTORL L R SR EF 2 B0 3R AR ET I
pension schemes in future years (2016: Nil). I (2015F : &) »
b The above items are included in “Cost of sales” on the x> A ETEB ST ARG ES REM 2K
face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and KM THEKRAR] A -
other comprehensive income.
b This item is included in “Other expenses and losses” on b ZIHEBF AR B REMEEEE
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss B [ E AR RESIE] A ©

and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (¢) and (f) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

EERFETHAEME

REBRAESZ EHRR ([EWRA]) - F
7R FEMEBIE383(1)(a) * (b) * (c) R (f)iE &
NE (BBEEEMNGEMN) RAUE 85
ZEEEERTETHABMERENT :

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREETTT
Fees we 3,227 2,121
Other emoluments: H B -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ITEREDHZ
in kind 1,713 1,906
Discretionary bonuses BB TE4L 1,043 2,780
Pension scheme contributions EIRETEIE R 105 94
2,861 4,780
6,088 6,901
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIUFFTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FABILIFATESTNRZEHII W

during the year were as follows: T
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTTT
Mr. Huang Wenli wm XA g 101 _
Mr. Shao Shaomin AR E k& 101 -
Mr. Liu Haifeng EystSte 51 =
Ms. Zhang Bingbing |k Z+ 42 =
295 -~
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e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. EBERIETHBAEME @
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (Continued) (a) BIYFHTES (F)
Ms. Zhang Bingbing, Mr. Huang Wenli and Mr. wikkZ+ - EXAEEE RS HE
Shao Shaomin were appointed as independent ER2016F12A10B EZEAAR
non-executive directors of the Company on 10 RN FERITES ©

December 2016.

Mr. Liu Haifeng was appointed as an independent 2818 % £ R2017F7A6RER T
non-executive director of the Company on 6 July BARRIELIERITES -

2017.

Ms. Zhang Bingbing resigned as an independent RAKKZTR2017F5A31 B EHEE
non-executive director on 31 May 2017. SNIEHITESE o

There were no other emoluments payable to the MEHMERNENBLIEFRTEE Y
independent non-executive directors during the year M (20165 « &) -

(2016: Nil).
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e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. BEERTETHAENE &)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) The chief executive officer, and executive (b) THHEBRITES
directors
The remuneration of each of these executive directors e T E MO
is set out below:
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 18 RIKGTE
e  RENAE WA fits MessE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR%T R ARBT R AR®T T AR®T R
Year ended 31 December 2017 HZ2017F12A318 LEE
Executive Directors: WTES:
Mr. Zou Brx 1,691 1,220 520 29 3,460
Mr. Chen Guohua BREE LA 44 172 200 29 842
Mr. Zeng Jin goka 44 172 200 29 842
Mr. Wang Ming FhEE 138 68 25 4 235
Mr. Shen Zhidong MERLE 221 81 98 14 414
2,932 1,713 1,043 105 5,793
Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ2016F12A31A LEE
Executive Directors: HoEE:
Mr. Zou s 1,284 1,518 2,567 28 5,397
Mr. Chen Guohua BEELE 331 162 51 28 572
Mr. Zeng Jin LEEAE 331 159 51 28 569
Mr. Wang Ming FH#EE 175 67 111 10 363
2,121 1,906 2,780 94 6,901

Mr. Shen Zhidong was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 6 July 2017. Mr. Zou
was redesignated as an executive director and the
chief executive officer of the Company on 18 March
2016. Mr. Chen Guohua, Mr. Zeng Jin and Mr. Wang
Ming were appointed as executive directors of the
Company on 18 March 2016.

Mr. Wang Ming resigned as an executive director on
31 May 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2016: Nil).

EAEREEN2017F7A6 R EEF
RARANITESE - P ER2016
FIA1BEBAEAERRAIRTESR
TR - BREIZELRE - THRER
T8 ER2016F3A 18R EZ XA
RABMITES -

F 8 A R2017F5 831 BB TT
Bz
METHNEEXETBTHRAENE

PR S 5 R B R B & M Tk (2016
£ E) .
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e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

9.  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hfuURGEHEE
The five highest paid employees during the year included FRNAUGEHEEREAARINMNES
four directors (2016: three), details of whose remuneration (2016%F : =fiu) - BEAEMNESMFBHN L
are set out in note 8 above. The emoluments of Mr. Wang N HTEES o F 885 A MT AT 8 AT I BR 1Y B (2
Ming disclosed in note 8 only included the portion of his BREETETESBEHENBIEHFM - 7
emoluments during the year when he held the directorship UmEmHEENTMFBEIFTEOT ¢

position. Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid
employees are as follows:

2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBEFTT
Fees we 3,347 1,946
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &% - TEREWH 1,905 3,639
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAT 1,180 6,239
Pension scheme contributions BIRGHEIH R 129 100
6,561 11,924
The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration FMNFTIEENESHEEHRBENT
fell within the following bands is as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T 4 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t 23,000,000/ 7T — 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 724,000,000 7T 1 1
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001/%7C%6,500,000/8 7T = 1
5 5
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to RER  AEBEBER A= EEX
any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement to ME  (ERRSIEMAREE SR IMARE R
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss ) AN S IE RBERAEE (201645 : &) o

of office (2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

INCOME TAX 10. FifEH
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands REHSHEMNRBEELHEESNBRA R
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in Bl AEBHAEARHSHEENEBEELHS
the Cayman Islands and the BVI. BARERIPRISH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EANEGHIEEBESBEENMGTERN
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Y A #216.5% (20164F : 16.5%) &Y = 5t
Hong Kong. REHE -
Under the income tax law of the PRC, companies with BEPEAEFE NP REANMERESD
operations in Mainland China are subject to corporate N A ERH EAT WA 8925% (20164 :
income tax (“CIT”) at a rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the 25%) B EFEE ([CIT]) °
taxable income.
Taxes on profits assessable in elsewhere have been REMM R ERFER IZREB K E T
calculated at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in fEaERRNBITHEE -
which the Group operates.
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFTT
Current — PRC BNER —
— Charge for the year —FAZH 20,027 18,587
— Overprovision in prior year — B FEBEEE (5,564) (627)
Current — Hong Kong BNER — &F 17,631 8,957
Deferred (note 23) RIE (K13123) 6,107 4,452
Tax charge for the year FRFHIES H 38,201 31,369
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31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FR8® (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before RN B REDHE R T FEMA N 55 E
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the A ERMERAENBR BTSN E BB IER
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the YEEAEBERHRTENTRIER X HER
tax expense at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows: ORI
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBEFTT
Profit before tax R 75 BT Y A1) 198,056 112,045
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REAREREBEARE
applicable to profit in the respective STEMRIE
jurisdiction 42,347 24,595
Adjustments in respect of current tax of  Zti@7F BARS BN ARRS 18 2 Hg &
previous periods (5,564) (627)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on REEAHEME QR S5
the distributable profits of the HEHEU10% BT A 32 2
Group’s PRC subsidiaries 5,062 3,921
Expenses not deductible for tax AATOHE 2,091 6,521
Super-deduction of eligible research and & &8 25 X BN
development expenditure (7,683) (3,234)
Income not subject to tax HARHUKA (228) (1,425)
Tax losses utilised from previous years B EE 2 EABIEEIE (737) (20)
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIIEEE 2,913 1,638
Tax charge for the year FARIELZH 38,201 31,369
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 21.4% (2016: e E B A B R R21.4% (20164 -
22.0%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax 22.0%) ° NMEFHBEABEELE IHNRAR
rate was caused by a change in the profitability of certain AlE T A A A A8 B RA R [ 89 & F g
subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions. BEBEFTE -
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e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

DIVIDEND 11. BRE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFTT
Interim dividend paid ERFHRE
- HK1.5 cents (2016: Nil) per — SREBR.58(
ordinary share (2016%F : #) 12,868 -
Interim special dividend paid BT A RIAR R
~ HK4.5 cents (2016: Nil) per — BREBR4.5E
ordinary share (20164 : f%) 38,604 -
Final dividend proposed F R R HARR B,
- HK3.8 cents (2016: HK1.8 cents) — BRE BRI
per ordinary share (20164 : 1.87%4l) 30,632 16,135
Special dividend proposed F R Rl AR B
— Nil (2016: HK8.7 cents) — R mRE
per ordinary share (20164 : 8.7/81l) = 76,840
82,104 92,975

Subsequent to the end of the Reporting Period, the Board
has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK3.8 cents per
ordinary share (2016 HK1.8 cents) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017
proposed subsequent to the Reporting Period have not
been recognised as a liability at the end of the Reporting
Period and are subject to the approval of the Company's
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
("AGM").

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was based on the profit
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent of RMB159,855,000 (2016: RMB80,676,000), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 992,465,753
(2016: 750,000,000) in issue during the year.

12.

WEHRRE  EFQREFRBZE2017F128
318 I FE IR AP E &KL @388
il (20164F : 1.871l) °

A R B ERE 22017F 128318 EF
& 2 R HA R B R B RS B0 48 7 3 45 HA K A
REAE  BERARRREAERERFE
FRg ([BRERAFAE]) ## -

BRAAEBEEFAARGEERAEF

HZE2017F12A31BLFE - ERELR
FIBRBEAFEIARLTEESEAAR
16 5% | A R #159,855,0007T (20164 : A
R #80,676,0007T) A MZFEEEEITLR
F% &9 0 4 S #59 £992,465,753k% (20164F :
750,000,0000% ) 5+ & -
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31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
(Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2017 represented 100,000 ordinary shares of the
Company as at 1 January 2017, 749,900,000 ordinary shares
of the Company issued under the Capitalisation Issue as if
these additional shares issued under the Capitalisation Issue
had been in issue throughout the year ended 31 December
2017, and weighted average number of 242,465,753 ordinary
shares of the Company issued upon the Listing.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 represented 100 ordinary shares
of the Company as at 1 January 2016, 99,900 ordinary
shares of the Company issued under the Share Split and
749,900,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued under
the Capitalisation Issue, as if these additional shares issued
under the Share Split and Capitalisation Issue had been in
issue throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.
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BRAAEBESSAARBGEBRAEF

B E2017F12A31BILFE - ;T EGRE
REMEE BB METIE - BEARETRN
201741 A1H #100,0000% & & B ~ A Q
AR R & AL B 178 1T #9749,900,0004% &
Mk - B EREE AR L BITEITREING
M EE ABNRE E2017F12A318 L2 F
EBITEIN  URR ETEEITHARRF
242,465,7530% & AR & hnHE F I o

HE2016F12A31BLFE  ;TESRE
REFMMHEBRMETF I - BREARAR
20165F1 H1H 100/ EimAR - AR RIRE
% {7 5 #7 3% 17 #999,9000% I i AX & AN A A
B AF & AL 817 3 77 #9749,900,0004% &
B B ERBERO DT RE AT
KR8 IR 1 FE M2 AR A B =20165F 12 A 31
HiE 2 FEHBITEN

R AN E BN E E20174F 2016512 A31
BB BTN B TR E @R
MR & BB 20174 &20165F12A31H 1
FEMNSREAZFWEFE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

e MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

13. Y%  BERRKE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve-  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
Buildings ments  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
BE
HE BER BAR
Bgy  NERE BE  HORG RE  EBIR -h
Note RMB000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i ARETn ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR
31 December 2017 20175128318
At 31 December 2016 and R2016512A31B R
1 January 2017: 0171718
Cost A - 4,360 15,520 6,658 1,295 34,204 62,037
Accumulated depreciation 2itirg - (3,005) (9,666) (4732) (542) - (17,945)
Net carrying amount FEFE - 1,355 5,854 1,926 753 34,204 44,092
At 1 January 2017, net of RO17TE1A18 -
accumulated depreciation Nk 2:1E - 1,355 5,854 1,926 753 34,204 44,092
Additions byl - 7,646 4,010 7,578 1,231 2,251 22,716
Disposals/write-off HE /B - - (861) (7 7 - (875)
Transfer =6 35,572 - - - - (35,572) -
Depreciation it 7 - (792) (887) (3,679) (542) - (5,900)
Exchange realignment Ej A8 (1,177) (124) (149) (62) - (883) (2,395)
At 31 December 2017, R2017F12A318 -
net of accumulated NBE:HE
depreciation 34,395 8,085 7,967 5,756 1,435 - 57,638
At 31 December 2017: R2017F12A318 :
Cost A 34,395 11,843 18,130 14,148 2,464 - 80,980
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE - (3,758) (10,163) (8,392) (1,029) - (23,342)
Net carrying amount BEFE 34,395 8,085 7,967 5,756 1,435 - 57,638
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e AR R M EE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. Y% - BERRE (&)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve-  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
ments  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total

ik BER &R &R
MERE BE  RHORE B ERIE ft
Note  RMBO00 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB0O0 ~ RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

31 December 2016 20165128318

At 1 January 2016 7201651418
Cost KA 4022 18,492 5,366 1,279 29,736 58,895
Accumulated depreciation 2:tE (2581)  (11,162) (4,554) (18) - (18315)
Net carrying amount RAFE 1,441 7,330 812 1,261 29,736 40,580

At 1 January 2016, net of ®201651A18

accumulated depreciation MR 2:E 1,441 7,330 812 1,261 29,736 40,580
Additions il 316 791 1311 16 2,438 4872
Disposals/write-off E / HsH - (723) (7) - - (730)
Depreciation il 7 (424) (1,544) (198) (524) = (2,690)
Exchange realignment X A% 22 - 8 - 2,030 2,060
At 31 December 2016, 2016E12A318 -

net of accumulated B EHATE

depreciation 1355 5,854 1926 753 34,204 44,092
At 31 December 2016; 120165128318 :

Cost R 4,360 15,520 6,658 1,295 34,204 62,037

Accumulated depreciation 2:E (3,005) (9,666) (4732) (542) - (17,945)

Net carrying amount FEFE 1,355 5,854 1,926 753 34,204 44,092
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15.
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e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. AL EERIE
2017 2016
20174 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
btaE AR¥T T ARBEFIT
Carrying amount at beginning of FHHEREE
the year 7,808 7,465
Amortisation 3 (163) (160)
Exchange realignment M 5, A 2 (433) 503
Carrying amount at end of the year FRKIRFAE 7,212 7,808
Current portion included in EEPNEESER
prepayments, deposits and Re RETREKEIE
other receivables b eI (158) (167)
Non-current portion ERBEBD 7,054 7,641

As at 31 December 2017, the title certificate with respect
to the land with a carrying amount of RMB7,212,000 (2016:
RMB7,808,000) in Cambodia leased by Masia Industries Co.,
Ltd., the Group’s subsidiary, from the Sihanoukville Special
Economy Zone Co., Ltd., was not registered in the name of
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. Notwithstanding, the directors are
of the opinion that Masia Industries Co., Ltd. is entitled to the
lawful and valid occupation and use of the buildings and land
to which the above-mentioned land use rights relate based
on the lease agreement and the subsequent assignment.

M2017412A318 - AE BB 2 A
Masia Industries Co., Ltd.[A 78 & 5278
KEFREARARMEENRBELS (BE
BEAARMK7,212,0007T ' 2016F A AR
7,808,0007T) #) FT & # & & I & PAMasia
Industries Co., Lid W& ERZERL - BE W
It - BER A Masia Industries Co., Ltd.
EERERERZEREBE L EREFRLA
WEAELM T HMERESROEEY R
i o

INVENTORIES 15. #F&
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Raw materials R 285,058 220,873
Work in progress TR 22,727 74,075
Finished goods SURK TR 35,504 19,595
343,289 314,543
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e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

16.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 16. BZEWREREKREE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®ET T
Trade receivables from third parties REE=HNESHEKFIEA 364,339 200,466
Trade receivables from a related company 5 EER TR E 5 FERZIE 19,877 -
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 FEW IR R E (92) (159)
Trade receivables, net B S REWHIE - F5E 384,124 200,307

Bills receivable arising from RESERNHEENEKRE

intra-group sales 4,878 19,673
389,002 219,980

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally one to two months,
extending up to three to four months for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral over
its trade and bills receivable balances. Trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of provision, is as follows:

FEBERAEZFNESEAUGERT - 7
Ef—RA—EMEA  TBEFPHEEH
EREREZME=EA - BUTFPRARS
EERE - AEBE B BEREREREERE
Wik - B AR e SR E R EE R -
AEBEY EREE ZERRREREERS
BRFEFAEAER DI ENEMEE MRS
it - BHRUGARBKRERERTEER -

RARESR - REBEZRAHRMNGREED
B 5 RWFARBRERENRROTOT

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Within 3 months 3EAR 366,769 201,870
4 to 6 months 45618 A 14,187 12,110
7 to 12 months 721218 A 8,046 6,000
389,002 219,980

138 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED HZ&ERRE R A T



16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 16.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
is as follows:

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

EZRURERERRERE (&)

B R R KR AR ARENE 5 KR
REBEENREDHTOT

2017 2016

20174 20164F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARBT T

Neither past due nor impaired B AR 18 HR TR A Rk (B 359,065 204,833
Less than 3 months past due BHEASE A AT 29,759 15,147
3 to 6 months past due #HISZ= 61E A 178 =
389,002 219,980

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

B R 780 3 7T 458 0k (6 B0 JE WO R TR e K B A 1
W B REERA DTS

BHEERENERRIBES RN AEEES
RIFFBRRENZEABLES - ENBEL
B ARRINEERR  BANABBRIE
HRERE  REAREEERYEEREH
RGP BRI T2 W o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 &3

139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

16. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

EZRUAEAREBRRERS (@)
B RWFIEREREBENEESHIT

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBEFTT

At beginning of year F9) 159 -
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B HEZRMEEIE (#:17) 95 154
Amount written off as uncollectable R A7 AT Y B i R ) 6 58 (159) -
Exchange realignment i 5 A E (3) 5
At end of year FR 92 159

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB92,000 (2016: RMB159,000) with the
same amounts as carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017.

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties or were in default
in principal payments and the receivables are not expected
to be recovered.

Trade receivables from a related company

il B 5 R IE R E R E B R2017F
12A31B¢BEREESEMNERIRENHA
R #92,0007T (20164 : AR¥159,0007T)
B Z W EIE B o

18 BIRE H) E 5 FE Wk R e 1 B 75 IR 3%

FHERA e B EEUKFIBR T REHF
B o

KB RERRNE Z R

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. 19,877 -

The above related company is controlled by the controlling
shareholders of the ultimate holding company of the Company
(the “Controlling Shareholders”). The trade receivables from
the related company is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and
have a repayment term of 120 days.
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17.

18.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. FEANARE - Ze Rk HMOEKRKIE
RECEIVABLES
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFTTT
Advances to suppliers TR FER IR 9,218 147,033
Other prepayments H B FIA 22,190 3,579
Deposits and other receivables Re RE M EYIE 57,278 67,515
Current portion of prepaid land lease Tt L A EFIB R R E IS
payments 158 167
88,844 218,294
None of the above assets were either past due or impaired. L EEMEARTERE - 5T A LA

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

B 2 B 7 ER AT 3 R 4 R RO R O B WK TR IR

B -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18. HERFASEEYRCEAEN
PLEDGED DEPOSITS
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Cash and bank balances R4 RIRITAER 208,102 294,469
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payable & : ERZHEHEERER
(note 19) (K7a£19) (181,861) (197,942)
Less: Pledged deposits for bank loans B RITERMBEEBTER
(note 21) (Kiz#21) = (22,880)
Total pledged deposits IR FREE (181,861) (220,822)
Cash and cash equivalents BERBESZEY 26,241 73,647
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRITAER
denominated in: BUATEERHE -
RMB AR 186,422 203,007
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") B ([%T]) 1,722 241
uss$ ETT 19,958 91,221
208,102 294,469
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e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

18.

19.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18. HRERFARESEEBYRESEBER (&)
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued)
As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RIM|EIR  UAREFTENR S RIBITHE
balances denominated in RMB amounted to RMB186,422,000 % A AR #186,422,0007T (20164 : AR
(2016: RMB203,007,000). RMB is not freely convertible #203,007,0007T) - ARM T BEHHLRE
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s HiE® - A R E AR INEE H1E
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration HREE  EERNESERTE  NEEE
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange B RERERBINEXZBONRITIEARYK
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for HBAEME -
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily WA ESHRTFAN RIS X
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with B RITHEBRTRIOBEEYNCHAEE
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. RAFHIERTT o
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 19. EFRNREREMARE
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBETTT
Trade payables to third parties ENE=AE FFHIE 178,126 297,466
Bills payables FERT R
— arising from intra-group purchases - REEEANEE 119,674 121,133
— arising from third party purchases —REE=ZFNEE 140,406 124,116
438,206 542,715
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

19.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

BEZRNREAREBNRE (@)

RAREHR  REZRAHOE SRR
BRENZENRESTOT

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREET T

Within 1 month 1ERAA 188,508 177,558
1 to 3 months 12318 A 101,190 163,753
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 141,327 180,468
Over 6 months HBid6fE A 7,181 20,936
438,206 542,715

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade
payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days
while bills payable are settled on a term of 90 to 180 days.

Certain bills payable were secured by pledged deposits with
aggregate carrying amounts as listed below:

ESENRBRENERETTE - E5E
NZERENIOEIB0EAEE » MENZ
ERIROOE180HNLAEE -

ETEMNZEHRERFFRERRT  BHRIF
GFRREERESNT

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T AREFTT

Pledged deposits of the Group (note 18) A&EE D EMIER (H17118) 181,861 197,942

As at 31 December 2017, certain bills payables were secured
by corporate guarantees provided by independent third
parties.

R2017F12A31H  ETENZERBY
F=HIRENRRERERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M EE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

19.

20.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 19. EBESEAREREMSRE (#)
As at 31 December 2016, certain bills payables were R2016F12A31H » ETEMNZHEHTERK
secured by personal guarantees, properties provided by RERHENEAZEREDE  EREBER
the Controlling Shareholders, corporate guarantees provided AR ([RAFE]D R IERHERMESR
by Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris PRC”) and Zhejiang Morris RAr ([RAME]) (B ABERREZES
Property Co., Ltd.* (“Morris Real Estate”) (TR AR E HRIENR) REMAAERRELIFE=
AR 2A7[]), which are related companies controlled by the R A RIEREE -
Controlling Shareholders, and corporate guarantees provided
by independent third parties.
* The English name of this entity represents management’s
best effort at translating its Chinese name as this entity
did not register any official English name.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 20. EHE#MENFENLETEHR
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBT T
Other payables Hofth FEA 3R 40,685 50,403
Accruals EsrEH 9,872 22,164
Receipt in advance TEWRIE 940 296
51,497 72,863

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and
are normally repayable on demand.
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 21. STEBITER
2017 2016
20175 20164
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity RMB’000 rate Maturity RMB'000
1 ik B AR%®Tx B E HE ARET
Current — secured BN - BEE
Bank loans RITER 2.1%-6.5% On demand 80,695 1.4%-7.4% On demand 187,072
BER BEXK
Bank loans RITER 4.6%-4.7% 2018 35,000 4.4%-4.6% 2017 35,000
20184 20174
Factoring loans with  FfiiB8 =R 3.3%-3.7% 2018 33,964 3.7% 2017 55,111
recourse RIEBE 20184 20174
149,659 277,183
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Analysed into: DITRATEIE :
Bank borrowings repayable within R—FARIZERKEED
one year or on demand RITRER 149,659 277,183
Notes: Biat -

(a)

Certain of the Group’s secured bank loans are secured
by:

(i pledged deposits of RMB22,880,000 as at 31
December 2016;

(i) pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings
which were provided by Morris PRC as at 31
December 2017 and 2016;

(iii) pledges of certain properties as at 31 December
2016 which were provided by the Controlling
Shareholders;

(iv) personal guarantees provided by the Controlling
Shareholders as at 31 December 2017 and 2016;

(v) corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC as
at 31 December 2016;

AEENETEEARITEFTATIE
TRVEHEAR

(i) R20165F128318 A A R #
22,880,000 T K77 R VEHE I

(ii) M20174E K% 20165128318 -
NRAFRBERENE TIELiH
KSR

(iii) 2016912 A31 H LAFE RS A% R
IRERE T YRR

(iv)  $EREARER MR 20174F 2016412
A31BiREAEAER

(v) RAPBEN2016F12A318 1R
HE R BRAR
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e AR R M EE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 21. FTEBITER &)
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Hist - (&)
(a) (Continued) (a) (%)
(viy  corporate guarantees provided by Morris Real (vi) TR RIE B AR R FE A M E
Estate, a company controlled by the Controlling 201612 A31 HiR LR A A
Shareholders as at 31 December 2016; IR
(vii)  corporate guarantees provided by independent (vii) BB =7 R20174F k201645
third parties as at 31 December 2017 and 2016; 12A31BERENARER &
and
(vil)  pledges of certain properties which were provided (vii)  BATRBRARRIZHI A A RIR A M
by Morris Real Estate, a company controlled by ER2017F %2016 12A31H
the Controlling Shareholders as at 31 December REE TOEEER -

2017 and 2016.

(b)  The Group’s bank borrowings were denominated in the (o) AEBEMBRITERIZTIEEE
following currencies:

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
RMB AR 75,000 180,450
US$ ETT 62,061 96,733
HK$ BT 12,598 -
149,659 277,183
22. WARRANTY PROVISION 22. RIGEHE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
At beginning of year F9) 2,790 3,915
Additional provision (note 7) RESNEE (MaL7) 3,405 4,104

Reversal of unutilised amounts in WAFE 2 AR A IR
prior year - (2,092)
Amount utilised during the year FARNEEHAFE (2,632) (3,684)
Exchange realignment M 5, 5 (271) 547
At end of year FR 3,292 2,790
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22.

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

WARRANTY PROVISION (Continued)

The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets

22.

23.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

RISEHE (&)

AEERETEPRE-FNERRER
% REBEREGHK  BRENERKGESH
EXE#hR - REBBSBHREHEELBE
I MREBRETHR - AREBFER
AEEEE - WRERELER] -

IEERIE
Unrealised profit arising

from intra-group transactions

EERNBTSEEHNRBERER

2017 2016

20174 20164F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBEFTT

At beginning of year F1) 2,986 3,665
Charged to profit or loss during the year &R B8z (1,045) (679)
At end of year FR 1,941 2,986

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB3,347,000 (2016: RMB2,045,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

AEBRETEABHRBBEERARE
3,347,0007T (20164 : A K #2,045,000
TO)R—ERFAREE - oI AR EERRE
AP - ARESREHRREENNEB R
BIEEIE— B - TR AR A R AT
FAIRE AR NIARE - S ER LS EHE
ERELEHRAEE -
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e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

23.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 23. EEEBIER (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE
Withholding taxes
FEB
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
At beginning of year F9) 3,880 107
Charged to profit or loss during the year F R BBz % 5,062 3,773
At end of year FXR 8,942 3,880

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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BEPERIINEEFEEEDRKE @ FE10%
R R BUNTEIEL o 23 E B2008F1 818
AR WEAR2007FE12A31A 2B E
R EF] o Wi B EANR IR B E AT Bl A bR
EEIEEET S E - AIARARKNTE
ME - RAEEMS - EABEE10% -
b AEBARPEANEKTINZSHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, B
2017 2016
201745 2016%F
US$’°000 RMB’000 US$'000 RMB’000
equivalent equivalent
FTExX AR¥ETR FET ARETR
ZE e
Authorised: v
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000/% & f%
US$0.001 each M {E0.001E TR @Ak
(2016: 10,000,000,000 ordinary (20164 :
shares of US$0.001 each) 10,000,000,0008% & f%
HE0.001ETMERR) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of  1,000,000,0008% &%
US$0.001 each E{E0.001 = TR L @R
(2016: 100,000 ordinary shares (20164F : 100,000/ A%
of US$0.001 each) HEE0.001E T EBR) 1,000 6,914 - 1
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e PR ERRME

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

24.

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 24. BA& (&)
The movements in the Company’s issued share capital during KRABRARFEEANNDBITRAEZEEFHOT :
the year are as follows:
Number of
ordinary shares Issued
in issue capital
21T 28T
ZBEREE =N
Notes RMB’000
Bt AR®ET T
At 1 January 2016 K2016F181H 100 1
Sub-division of shares a3 ([BRHDHF])

(the “Share Split”) (i 99,900 -
At 31 December 2016 and HR2016F12A31H &

1 January 2017 201741 A1H 100,000 1
Global Offering BRI E (ii) 250,000,000 1,728
Capitalisation Issue B AL BETT (iii) 749,900,000 5,185
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H 1,000,000,000 6,194
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the then sole
shareholder passed on 10 December 2016, each share
of the Company of US$1 in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company was sub-divided into 1,000
shares of US$0.001 each, such that the authorised share
capital of the Company became US$50,000 divided into
50,000,000 shares of US$0.001 each and the issued
share capital of the Company became US$100 divided
into 100,000 shares of US$0.001 each.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the then sole
10 December 2016, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from US$50,000 to US$10,000,000 by the creation of a
further 9,950,000,000 shares of US$0.001 each.

shareholder passed on

In connection with the Listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange, 250,000,000 new
ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of the Company were
issued at a price of HK$1.05 per ordinary share for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of HK$262,500,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB234,042,000) (the
“Global Offering”). Dealings in the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange commenced on 12 January 2017.

Upon the creation of the Company’s share premium
account as a result of the Global Offering, an amount of
US$749,900 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,185,000)
standing to the credit of the share premium account
of the Company has been capitalised on 12 January
2017 by applying such sum towards paying up in
full at par a total of 749,900,000 ordinary shares for
allotment and issue to the then existing shareholders
(the “Capitalisation Issue”). Immediately following the
completion of the Global Offering and the Capitalisation
Issue, the total outstanding ordinary shares of the
Company was 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares including
the 250,000,000 ordinary shares issued upon the Global
Offering.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

24. IRAE (&)

Hiat -

(if)

(iii)

BIEARRQRE—REN2016512A4
10RRBMNEEARR - AAAEEH
TRABITRAFTFRIZTHKRMD
S A1,0000 &/ EE0.001%E T
BRI - SBARERETEREE A
50,0002 7T+ % # £50,000,0004%
EREEC.COIETH KD MAA
RIM B BITIRAE B100E T DF
£100,000/% & % ™ {E0.0013€ 7T /Y

Btn o

1B 15 B8 — IR 2016412 A 108 &
BREERER - ADQRIAEERA
% 1B — 25 18 5%9,950,000,0000% &
A% T 10.0012E 7T B9 B 15 M B 50,000
ET#%10,000,0003E T °

RARBBRMARB I ETmME
AR AR E®R1.058 T 1T
250,000,000/% (& A& ™ {E0.0013%
o) FERE BEREAE IR
A1) £262,500,000/8 T (FHER
4 A R #234,042,0007T) ([ 2 B 3
£1) e ARFIRMHBBE2017F1 128
R FTHABEE -

EARRREZKREEMRILKRHREE
BR1% - 8215 & %8 A749,900% 7T (48
B AR5 185,0007T) 8% (5
mERER  HESECR2017F
1128 B BRANREEESHEER
BRETTARAERREERREN
749,900,0008% Bz fn i & A1k ([ &4
1£317]) - BEERERBEE REANE
B2 ARRIBEBITEERE
#11,000,000,0000% + £ & 5 4% & Bk
B BF 21T H9250,000,0000% & @A ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

25.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

()

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised)
22 of the Cayman lIslands, share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions and
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distributions
or dividend payments, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Chapter

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all
relevant exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the Company
and subsidiaries with functional currencies other than
RMB.

Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve
funds were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&ERERA T

25.

(N

AEENKEERBEEENEEREDH
B2 AR B -

U]

(i)

(iii)

MR A8

RIEMSHBERRE (BERT) 522
B RIRABERAE R AR E
1 A RIB 5 (B A E R BRIk
KRB - RATRIGH R EHEDIREAR
BANRIE - RRBREHNEERE
BB DI HNER -

BE 70K B ik

EXRBDRERBERERARRRME
REFBHERAARBEAININEEE
BELENFAHEMELEZSE -

REEE

AR AR A B BIAR R SOE B A K
ZAYNET) Nl Ava: [ PN EREE =
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26.

27.

28.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26. MEHRSREBRME
OF CASH FLOWS
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities: MRS S RN R EZE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
FFERITER
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTT
At beginning of the year F9) 277,183 198,116
New bank borrowings made during FAELBFRITER
the year 579,609 645,836
Repayment during the year FRER (704,116) (572,041)
Exchange realignment M 57, 3R 2 (3,017) 5,272
At end of the year FR 149,659 277,183
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 27. HARAEE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities REBRABERRTBEMNERNIAE
as at the end of the reporting period. &
OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS - AS 28. REHEZH —EAEBEA

LESSEE

The Group leases an office property, showrooms and factory
premises under operating lease arrangements. The leases
for these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 2
to 10 years. (2016: 1.5 to 10 years)

AREBMRBELHELHBEENRIDE B
ELEME - ZEYENHELRMEET4H
HARER o (20165 @ —FXE 1)
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e PR ERRME

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS - AS 28.

LESSEE (Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments during under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

REHEZS - FREEAN (@)

HZE2017F12A318 » AL BB B0
HEERAMAR THRBASZ AR REE
MERREENT

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBET T
Within one year —FE R 7,457 5,330
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_FZERLF  BEEEREMEF 1,780 3,094
9,237 8,424
29. COMMITMENTS 29. &iE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 28 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B Lt srossf MR B R E ARSI - KK
BN AR EHREB AT EARRE

2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBEFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: SHEMEE ST
Buildings ZEY) 712 570
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group had the following
significant transactions with related parties during the
year:

30.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

BLHRZ
(a) MEBHRREMIBOHFLNRZSI

$7,<@EA¢W BETTETUTER

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBT T

Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. Jennifer Convertibles, Inc.
Sales of finished goods (note) HEKm (HE) 27,009 30,495

Morris PRC BEARGH

Purchases of inventories HEEFE - 55,379
Purchases of electricity BEEN 794 1,717
Rental expenses (note) HeMz (HiE) 11,733 6,521
Agency fee RIEE - 5,531

The above related parties are companies controlled
by the Controlling Shareholders. The transactions
were conducted on terms and conditions mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

Note:
These related party transactions also constitute

non-exempt continuing connected transactions as
defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

b 38 5 A e 22 R AR SR 0 22
7 o REX S HREEBTHEE
772 0 AR R AT -

wiiz -

ZEREN R IER LT RRIE14A
BEEBENTERLHEWERS -
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e MR MR

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

BESFXS (&)
(b) AEEEEEEABNHH

the Group
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Fees we 2,861 2,120
Salaries, allowances and benefits e ERREYH R
in kind 3,143 3,907
Discretionary bonuses BB 1,256 6,387
Pension scheme contributions RIRGHEIMH R 145 123
Total compensation paid to TRHFEEEERAEN
key management personnel e ek 7,405 12,537

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

2017
Financial assets

EEMEE - FHBHRUBHRE
BI5ES o
REREINEMIA

FESRIANBEHRNEBERIWM
TS 8

20174
SREE

Loans and receivables

BRRERRE

2017 2016

20174 201645

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T

Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWGRIE K R R 5 389,002 219,980
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AFE{S 358 « 124 & Efth

deposits and other receivables EWFIERN & REE 57,278 67,548

Pledged deposits e EIER 181,861 220,822

Cash and cash equivalents ReRIBEEEY 26,241 73,647

654,382 581,097
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32.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 31. RERESHNERMIA (&)
(Continued)
Financial liabilities eRMERE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERATTENSRERS
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T
Trade and bills payables B 5B RERERN R 438,206 542,715
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE M FE A RIE K EET
payables and accruals BERMERAR 30,715 39,519
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHERITER 149,659 277,183
618,580 859,417
TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 32. BREEBEAE
AEZRUIEIANCEESREE

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety

(a)

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has retained the substantial
risks and rewards, which include default risks of
certain issuing banks after the endorsement, and
accordingly, the Group continued to recognise the
full carrying amounts of the endorsed bills receivable
from such issuing banks (the “Endorsed Bills”) and
the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent
to the endorsement, the Group did not retain any
rights on the use of the Endorsed Bills, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to
any other third parties. As at 31 December 2017, the
aggregate carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills
were RMB4,842,000 (2016: RMB19,673,000).

(a) H20175F12A318 » NEE &+
BEARITEANE TRKRZESE
FETHER  WEEEBMZEHE
BNESENNE EZRA A&
B RBEAIBOHRER REH - KA
aa‘%ibifﬁ T FETIRITHENR
C AR B BRI EHITRT
E’JFEH&%‘%E‘%TF ([BEEEK]D &*ﬁ
MEBEEMNESENKENE I
HE1E o W“ié%&%@T@%mE
AFEASEZENES - B2EREM
HME=—HE HEYIEREE
Z4k - R2017FE12A310 - HEE
BRRAEBELEASARK4842,000
7T ° (2016%F : A R #19,673,000
JL) °
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e B R R Y R

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

32.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety (Continued)

(b) As part of its normal business, the Group entered
into trade receivable factoring arrangements (the
“Factoring Arrangements”) with recourse and
transferred certain trade receivables to banks.
Under the Factoring Arrangements, the Group was
exposed to the default risk of the trade debtors after
the transfer. The aggregate carrying amount of the
trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangements that has not been settled and continued
to be recognised by the Group as at 31 December
2017 were RMB33,964,000 (2016: RMB55,111,000).

At 31 December 2017, the Group discounted and endorsed
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland
China (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain banks in order
to obtain additional financing or certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with
carrying amount in aggregate of RMB117,327,000 (2016:
RMB119,105,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of
one to six months (2016: one to six months) at 31 December
2017. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a
right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). The Derecognised Bills were
honoured by reputable banks in the PRC, such as China
Merchants Bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
and other reputable banks rating at AAA by national credit
rating agencies. In the opinion of the directors, these banks
have good reputation and credit quality, and the risk of
default of these bills receivable on maturity is remote, and
therefore, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills since after
the transfer the Group’s exposure to the variability in the
amounts of the net cash flows of the transferred asset is not
significant. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
liabilities. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised
Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of
the directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.
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32.

BRETHMEE (@)
EX2RILBANCEESHEE (£)

EREEREBN—EH - AEED
AINHTERENE HEKBFIBRER
PE(RELZED  BETEZREK
RIEEETIRIT - RIEBREZHE - &
%lﬁiﬂﬁ*&%%LﬁAmLm
A o R2017F12A31H » KEEH
HEHERBRRETHEREM M ARE
ENEZRIREMNEREDELEAA
R #33,964,0007T » (2016%F : AR
#55,111,0007C) °

—~
O
-

MR2017F12A31H " &E @B m & T &
TREAETHERGRAEREEFE R
WRTEMNETEEELE A A
R #117,327,0007C (201656 : A R ¥
119,105,00070) MEKER ([RIEBERE
Bl LESBEIIMEXEERNZSHE
B E S EMNRIE o KIEHEREEN2017F
12 A31 EIfLE%}Jr—ﬁ/\fIH (20164 : — &= X
@A) BIE - BIFREARLMBERIRE -
WMEPERITEY  KUEEREBRBEAS
BEAEBER ([EESH]) - RIEHERE
B P BEAMBRITEN - REEIT
P TR RIT RBEREEFREELS TAAA
RN EMAZET EERA - ZERTT
BELEEEAEEE  BZSEREEND
HEARKREMN  MAEECEBRRIEER
ZEABANERSRBEE®R  mE e
Bk AEEATEEEREEFERESRE
HEHHWER I TEKX - R IEFERLLL

BREELABEENEHREE - A&E
BB S WX TR R ATE R R N8 K E R
NRBEZEREERZENABBRRER
EREREEEE - EERE - NEEHEE
SHEENIEREZBEN AR ELTERK -



32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised
in their entirety (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
not recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of
the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised
from the Continuing Involvement, both during the year or
cumulatively. The discounting and endorsement has been
made evenly throughout the year.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings and
amounts due from/to related parties approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly
to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

32.

33.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

TERUEBINCERTHMEE (2)

gl

HZE2017F12A31BLFE - AEE L &
RELEERERNERE ANEIER -
REANKBERRE  TEBRIRAEESE
s - RERBERITRESE -

AEBSRTEMEAELAABEAAE
AEAE -

ERECHERSLREFEY CHENE
K BZREFARBREE  SHATRNK
B R REMBRZBENEREE  B5

ENFRERENRE st ARMENFER
EFFERNESRAE 5 ERITERMEH

BBy KB FEAT BRE T SRR D EEE
REERE  TEARZSTANIHAR

g ©

AREBET A BREH AN DR E B K
BERERTANAAEBFENERRLRE
FoebXBEBRERRNBEREMEEER -
REREEH  CEREEFSTERMITA
BEEPLETERANGENTIZHAH
& o (AEC R BRI E BN RILE -

TREEMBRENAAEBABBRR ST (8
BHFREEERI) EAIRHF % LA
ARHEBALR -
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33.

34.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group did not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at fair value and any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the vyear, there was no transfer of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2016: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash and cash equivalents
and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk exposure refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of the Group’s bank loans will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As at
31 December 2017, if interest rates at that date had been
10 basis points higher with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have
been RMB55,000 (2016: RMB43,000) and RMB25,000 (2016:
Nil) higher arising as a result of a decrease in the fair value
of fixed and floating rate bank loans respectively. If interest
rates at that date had been 10 basis points lower with all
other variables held constant, profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 would have been RMB55,000 (2016:
RMB43,000) and RMB25,000 (2016: Nil) lower arising as a
result of an increase in the fair value of fixed and floating rate
bank loans respectively.
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34.

ERMTANDARERARERER (@)

R2017F 128318 » ZREBW E L AIZA
REHFENEREEREREE k2016
FI2A3IATETMZAABNENSRE

& o

FALREERSRBEE1IRNE2RAR
Bt My EER  rEdE A EHEs
HEISER (201645 « &) o

MBEREERERBER

FEBNTIESRMIARETBRITER
ReLBReEEYRCBERENR - 2SR
TANIE2AMNERAKBEMNEEERE
T AEBELEEKBHEEREEELN
HvERMEERAR B HEEFARE
WRENRE S BNRARENER -

AEEeRTAEEANIZARATNER
@ HNERR - EERBRERBESER o
EER BAEEESERROEE B
BRSBTS o

=k

FEREBRIEREBERITERNA R ELR R
REenEHAMISH ESE MK RE
R2017F12A31H - FEFT A H b & B i
TEHERT @ MZzAF RS H10@EER
HZE2017F12A31B L FEEMHEMAAR
#55,0007T (20164F : A R ¥43,0007T) &
AR #25,0007T (20164 : &) » AEE K&
FEANRBEITERNRAARBETRMD A
Frigme- EFMBEMEHEAERTENBR
T ffi 5z B REARI0MEE 2 - & =2017
F12A318 Lt F E ® % F & A R #55,000
7T (20164 © A R #43,0000T) & A R #&
25,0007t (20164 + &) » A EE & )Z &) F
KIRITERM AR EIG N BIE T TR -



34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of
fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments which
arose from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the exchange rates of
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
operating units, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities). There is no material impact
on other components of the Group’s equity.

34.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

MEEREEBERBE (&)

SNEE LB

SNERRIESRTANAABEICRKREDR
EREXZFHTKBNER

AEEHEXZEREAR - ZFRARTIEAL
BEMNABMNMNEREE I EREETE
BEmMEL

TRELEMAEEMEERFTENBER
T BE¥ (HRKEEMNIEaEEEKRIN)
PE R 10 & I 7] A & B ¥ AN 55 B BR B AR A
(EREBEEREBNARERD) B
Bt - AREESHEMAH U EZINE

By 88
ARE -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rates before tax
ExtH FBRBE A 2 A
(k) 2, Omd)
% RMB’000
% ARBTIT
2017 20175
If RMB weakens against US$ i AR HETEE 5 10,163
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR¥E T HE (5) (10,163)
2016 20164
If RMB weakens against US$ i AR#E N =TT E 5 6,099
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR¥E R =TT HAE () (6,099)
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged
deposits, amounts due from related parties, and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

The Group had certain concentrations of credit risks as the
following percentage of trade and bills receivables were due
from the Group’s largest external customer and the Group’s
five largest external customers out of the Group’s total trade
and bills receivables excluding the bills receivable arising
from intra-group sales transactions:

34.

MEERERERERBE (&)

FERR

AEBEREARBREENENE=TTET
X5 MBAKBEOERE - ERIREEH
ETRGNEP  BALBBEERER
Freltdh REBFBEERBREHRNE
N MARERZEREARTTERX -

AEBHEMEREE (T2REAS LIRS
EEY CERER BRBEEHIRER
Hib U IR) MEERBRRY T ROME
£ EREFRZFTAMNKHE °

R AT L Bl B 5 e Y kIR K R R 18 T
AEEE 5 RUGIAR BB FIRAEEK
AEBEZRAIIBEE RAEBRRINEEF
FR(TEEEEREERSELNRER
B BAKEREETRTEERR :

2017 2016
20174 20164
% %
Due from the Group'’s largest external JER A EE R RINBE F I8
customer 58 28
Due from the Group’s five largest JEUUR S B 7 RINIBR F RUR
external customers 82 79

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables are
disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and
to maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that
the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities,
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates and based on rates at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date that the
Group could be required to repay:

which are based on contractual

34.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

MEEREEBERBE (&)

REBE @R

AEEMBERARFFBENVBEE - KR
BRBREEEARBESHEINEREDRE
=R 8 MR AEEAR TR ERH
MBESEKL

TERHVNAEENEBEBERRE R RO
TANIMBER  HIRBESORMBERS
nE (BERRERREPRNEONKRTE
MMEXH) RAKEAHEERNRNHFE
BEmEL

Within 1 year or on demand

MEFERFIRER

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTTT

Trade and bills payables BHENRERENER 438,206 542,715
Financial liabilities included in other FEAE A A R IE &

payables and accruals EstEREMETmEaE 30,715 39,519

Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHEERITER 149,659 278,575

618,580 860,809
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is

34.

MEERERERERBE (&)
ESERE
AEBELERENTIEBBERREASEN

FREQERN  URERBRENESILE
PASTRSELZRTS o

REERBEERENELREEMFARE
REEHE o BRI RNABRERER  AEET
BEEIRTFTREMNRBMELAR  MRER
@§$ﬁ% THR D - B E20164 22017
F12A31AEFE  EBREANEBRZE  BR
A2 L

AEBEUNEERBHLRERAER - BIFHR

the total interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by the total fﬁ?ﬂjﬁh BEEM DAMEZS 850 o B BREIEE
equity. Total equity refers to equity attributable to owners of NEHEAANELER RNEREHRNEE
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting BELERNT
periods were as follows:
2017 2016
20174 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBEFTT
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T BIRITIERR (Mfat21)
(note 21) 149,659 277,183
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &R RIS A FEILHERS 382,754 158,764
Gearing ratio BEBELE 39.1% 174.6%
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35.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible
loan (the “Convertible Loan”) agreement (the “Convertible
Loan Agreement”) with International Finance Corporation
(“IFC”), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the
Company agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the
right to convert all or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Loan into shares of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion
share (subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible
Loan Agreement). On the assumption that the Convertible
Loan would be converted into conversion shares in full at
the conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share,
the aggregate principal amount of the Convertible Loan of
HK$200,000,000 is convertible into approximately 90,090,090
conversion shares, which represent approximately 9.01% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2017 and approximately 8.26% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the conversion shares.

35.

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

HEHERER

2018F1ASH AR m HEKE & &M A
A ((BEEemAF]) ST —MmAaRKkE
RO |BRER]D B ([T RERE R
#1) BEZDE  BEemARREHE
MR AR E g A& 8% 4£200,000,000
BT HRRBRER - EReBRARERES
% 42 B% Bk 172,227 T ) 1) JR 1R AR (B 18 & 5T
D AR ERREERSEESEBR AR
ARG (AIRIBEATRRE KB EATSHEL A
B) o BERATRBREFIRTRBKZBK K222
PETTEVIR IR E 1 2 BRI A AR AR 1 - RIS
& 42 %5200,000,0007% 7T #Y #2 A% B 51 7] 4 82
K 990,090,090 8 AR iR 1+ #91EZANA &)
R2017F12A31HE BT/ ARNI01% * 4
AR E] BB ITIRANEI8.26% (M M &A%
AP O BC 3% R B TTROIE ST ) ©
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31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. ARFHBMRREK

COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the RI|ERAR » BAQ AT ERNKRBBEHE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BT
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®ET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—RHBRRIMIEE 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A5 R IE R A R R IE 3,847 48
Due from subsidiaries FEW M E A RIRIE 322,702 105,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRSEEY 146 =
Total current assets mENE E 326,695 105,048
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals HE M R IE R ERTE A 205 3,994
Due to subsidiaries EARENEINGI B! - 3,318
Total current liabilities mENBERRE 205 7,312
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 326,490 97,736
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE#ERABERS 326,491 97,737
Net assets BAEFME 326,491 97,737
EQUITY s
Share capital A& A< 6,914 1
Reserves (note) i (FsE) 319,577 97,736
Total equity B 326,491 97,737
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)

e MR MEE

31 December 2017
2017 12 A 31 H

36. AQXTHBEMRRE (&)

Note: Htat -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARAHEHELT -
Retained
Exchange earnings/
Share fluctuation (accumulated
premium reserve losses) Total
BRRA/
BAEE ERRBEE (RETEB) Fob
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®T ARET T ARBTR
At 1 January 2016 7201651718 - (4) (84) (88)
Profit for the year FEREF - - 98,134 98,134
Other comprehensive loss for the year: FREMEEERE :
Exchange differences on translation of HENBEREANER =%
financial statements = (310) = (310)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZAKGEE - (310) 98,134 97,824
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 120165128318 K
20171R1H - (314) 98,050 97,736
Profit for the year FREF - - 166,687 166,687
Other comprehensive loss for the year: ~ FRHEM2EEE :
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEMBHRENEHRZHE
financial statements - (13,424) - (13,424)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNPEREEE - (13,424) 166,687 153,263
Issue of shares pursuant to the listing of RIEAD R ETEITRA
the Company 232,314 - - 232,314
Capitalised issue of shares R EAR BT (5,185) = = (5,185)
Expenses incurred in connection with HBETHROBEEEN
issue of new shares 53 (15,229) - - (15,229)
Dividends paid BERREA - - (143,322) (143,322)
At 31 December 2017 #2017%128318 211,900 (13,738) 121,415 319,577

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 14 March 2018.
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Five Year Financial Summary

T FEHERE

The consolidated results of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2017 and the consolidated assets and liabilities

H E2016%F K2017F12A31H IEFE ALK
ERA2R(ARRAD REWBAR (TX4HBEA
[REE]) OGEEEURARNEBR20164F 22017

of the Group as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 are those set out

in the audited financial statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of
the years ended 31 December 2013, 2014 and 2015 and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2013, 2014 and 2015 has been extracted from the prospectus
issued on 30 December 2016 in connection with the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of

Hong Kong Limited on 12 January 2017.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

F12ABMERABEERBBEHHEIINEERZE
WERA -

N E H £20134F « 20144 %2015 128318 IE
BEENGAEXERBZUAREKEENR2013F - 2014
FR2015F12A3VBMGEEERBENBEAR
NAERD E2017F1 12BN EBMAXIE
RARER EMATTIEM BB A2016F12A30H K
BBRER -

AT ES MEREBELZHBHRERN 2D -

statements.
Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A31BLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20164 20154 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREBTRT ARETRT ARETFT ARETT
RESULTS e
Revenue WA 1,199,714 941,617 926,471 824,675 984,026
Cost of sales S E A (826,008) (671,050) (706,557) (652,051) (787,450)
Gross profit EF 373,706 270,567 219,914 172,624 196,576
Profit before tax B i B9 198,056 112,045 103,166 37,804 44,074
Income tax expense FTiS R (38,201) (31,369) (20,098) (13,440) (10,531)
Profit for the year £ 3% A 159,855 80,676 83,068 24,364 33,543
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20175 20164 20154 20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE®TRE ARETRT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Total assets REE 1,095,870 1,102,005 937,359 1,728,622 2,023,865
Total liabilities ES=N (713,116) (943,241) (862,302) (1,423,246) (1,742,980)
382,754 158,764 75,057 305,376 280,885

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED E&ERERA T
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